
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, please contact Debbie Dedeaux at 225.774.5795 to 
describe the assistance that is necessary. 
 

 

City of Baker School Board  
Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, October 1, 2024, 6:00 P.M. 
School Board Office 

Joyce Burges, President – Presiding 
 
“It is not fair to ask of others what you are not willing to do yourself.”- Eleanor Roosevelt 
 
Notice Posted: ______________   ____________ 
  (Date)      (Time) 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING/MEETING 
 
I. A public hearing will be held as follows: 
 
DATE: Tuesday, October 1, 2024 
TIME:  6:00 P.M. 
PLACE: City of Baker School Board 
  Board Room 
  14750 Plank Road 
  Baker, Louisiana 70714 
 
Millage Discussion: To consider levying additional or increased millage rates without further voter approval 
or adopting the adjusted millage rates after reassessment and rolling forward to rates not to exceed the prior 
year’s maximum. The estimated amount of tax revenues to be collected in the next year from the increased 
millage is $2,623,169.75, and the amount of increase in taxes attributable to the millage increase is 
$275,920.30. 
Public Comments and Questions 
Board Member Comments and Questions 
Close public hearing; ADJOURN. 
 
II. A public meeting will be held as follows: 
 
DATE: Tuesday, October 1, 2024 
TIME:  6:15 p.m. or Immediately after Public Hearing 
PLACE: City of Baker School Board 
  Board Room 
  14750 Plank Road 
  Baker, Louisiana 70714 
 
AGENDA:   (Full meeting agenda is required.) 
 
A. Meeting Commencement  

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call  
3. Silent Meditation  
4. Pledge of Allegiance  

B. Welcome of Visitors  
C. Recognitions  
 1. Homecoming Court 
D. Approval of Agenda (Action)  
E. Action Items-The public may comment on Action Items. Public Comment is limited to 2 minutes per 
individual. 

1. Consideration and Approval of Minutes from the School Board Meeting of September 3, 2024.  
2. Consideration and adoption of resolution to adjust millage rate(s). 
3. Consideration and adoption of the resolution to set forth the adjusted millage rate(s) and roll forward to 

millage rate(s) not exceeding the maximum authorized rate(s). 



In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, please contact Debbie Dedeaux at 225.774.5795 to 
describe the assistance that is necessary. 
 

 

4. Consideration and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports including Budget to Actual Comparisons for 
the Periods Ending July 31, 2024 and August 31, 2024 

5. Consideration and Approval of updates of policies:  
i. A-5.2 QUALIFICATIONS FOR SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 

ii. B-3 SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER CONTINUING EDUCATION 
iii. B-12.1 NOTIFICATION OF SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS 
iv. D-7.4 PURCHASING 
v. DJEB COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) DISASTER RECOVERY 

PROCUREMENT 
vi. F-9.2 COMPENSATION 

vii. F-11.4 SICK LEAVE 
viii. F-11.4b SICK LEAVE BANK 

ix. H-3.5b CORPORAL PUNISHMENT 
x. H-3.6 STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES 

xi. H-3.6b IMMUNIZATIONS 
xii. H-3.6c ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION 

xiii. H-3.6i BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR STUDENTS 
6. Consideration and Approval of Change Order 10 for the BHS construction project. 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Superintendent's Report on Personnel 
G. Announcements 

1. Date of Next Meeting – November 5, 2024 
H. Adjournment (Action) 



 
         

City of Baker School Board Meeting 
September 3, 2024 

 
MINUTES 

 
The City of Baker School Board held a public meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
September 3, 2024. 
 
President Burges called the public meeting to order and explained to visitors the process for 
speaking on action agenda items is to request a comment card from Mrs. Debbie Dedeaux.  Write 
your name on the card as well as the number of the agenda item you wish to speak on and return 
the card to Mrs. Dedeaux.  She will bring the card up to the Board President at the appropriate 
time.  Visitors will be allowed two (2) minutes to speak. 
 
Mrs. Burges welcomed all visitors to the meeting and took roll call: 
 
 Perkins:  Present 
 Profit:     Present 
 Joseph:   Present 
 Butler:    Present 
 Burges:   Present 
 
President Burges announced there was a quorum and the meeting would proceed. 
 
Silent Meditation was led by Mrs. Profit, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Ms. 
Butler. 
 
A Proclamation prepared by Mayor Darnell Waites in honor of the reopening of Baker High 
School was read by Board Attorney Monica Moton, and received by Dr. Candance Russell, 
Baker High School Principal.  
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve the meeting 
agenda.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
Action Items: 
 

1. Consideration and Approval of Minutes from the School Board Meeting of August 6, 
2024 
On motion of Ms. Butler seconded by Mrs. Profit, the Board voted to approve the 
minutes from the School Board Meeting of August 6, 2024.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, 
Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 

2. Consideration and Approval of Servitude for the City of Baker to Install a Waterline to 
the South Side of the Stadium 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve a servitude 
for the City of Baker to install a waterline to the south side of the stadium.  Voting yes:  
Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 



 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
September 3, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

3. Consideration and Approval of an RFP for Pre-Position Contract for Disaster 
Management 
On motion of Ms. Butler seconded by Mrs. Profit, the Board voted to approve a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for a pre-position contract for disaster management.  Voting yes:  
Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 

4. Consideration and Approval of an RFP for Food Service Management Contract 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for a food service management contract.  Voting yes:  Perkins, 
Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 

5. Consideration and Approval of Updated Job Descriptions Based on Act 311: 
i. Middle School Classroom Teacher 

ii. Dean of Students 
iii. Athletic Director and Head Football Coach 
iv. Band Director 
v. Custodian 

vi. Elementary Classroom Teacher 
vii. Instructional Coach 

viii. Special Education Teacher 
ix. Child Nutrition Technician I 
x. School Counselor 

xi. Family Liaison 
xii. Head Custodian 

xiii. High School Teacher 
xiv. Performing Arts Teacher 

On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve all job 
descriptions presented (i.-xiv.) based on Act 311.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, 
Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 

6. Consideration and Approval of the Pupil Progression Plan for the 2024-2025 School Year 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve the Pupil 
Progression Plan for the 2024-2025 school year.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, 
Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 

7. Consideration and Approval of Amendment 2 to the CSRS Contract 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve 
Amendment 2 to the contract with CSRS.  In the contract, under Section 2 the term “lump 
sum” will be replaced with “time and materials”.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, 
Joseph, and Burges.   Voting no:  None. 
 

F.  Information Items 
 

1. Superintendent’s Report on Personnel 
A report on all personnel actions was provided to the Board prior to the meeting. 

City of Baker School Board Minutes 
Page 3 



 
September 3, 2024 
 
 

2. Policies for Update 
The following policies will be considered at the October School Board Meeting: 

i. A-5.2     QUALIFICATIONS FOR SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 
ii. B-3        SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER CONTINUING EDUCATION 

iii. B-12.1   NOTIFICATION OF SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS 
iv. D-7.4     PURCHASING 
v. DJEB    COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) DISASTER 

              RECOVERY 
vi. F-9.2     COMPENSATION 

vii. F-11.4   SICK LEAVE 
viii. F-11.4b SICK LEAVE BANK 

ix. H-3.5b  CORPORAL PUNISHMENT 
x. H-3.6    STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES 

xi. H-3.6b  IMMUNIZATIONS 
xii. H-3.6c  ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION 

xiii. H-3.6i   BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR STUDENTS 
 

G. Announcements: 
 

1. Date of Next Meeting -- October 1, 2024 
 

2. President Burges announced that at the next School Board Meeting, scheduled for 
October 1, 2024, the Board will conduct a public hearing on our millage. 
 

H. Board Comments: 
 
There were no Board comments. 

 
I.  Adjournment: 
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to adjourn at 6:55 p.m. 
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
 
Submitted by:  J.T. Stroder, Secretary. 



















FILE:  A-5.2 
Cf:  A-5.1   

City of Baker School District                                                                                                    

 QUALIFICATIONS FOR SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 
Persons eligible to serve as members of the City of Baker School Board shall have the 
following minimum qualifications: 
 
 1. A School Board member shall have attained the age of eighteen (18). 
 
 2. A School Board member shall be domiciled in the election district for the 

preceding year, except after a reapportionment. 
 
 3. A School Board member shall have resided in the state for the preceding 

two (2) years. 
 
 4. A School Board member shall possess a high school diploma or its 

equivalent, as determined by the Louisiana Department of Education. 
 
 5. A School Board member shall be able to read and write. 
 
 6. A School Board member shall not be serving on certain other boards 

specified in the Constitution of Louisiana’s prohibition against dual office 
holding. 

 
 7. A School Board member shall have affirmed to the prescribed oath. 
 
Should any member of the School Board move his/her domicile from the election district 
from which such member was elected, the seat held by said member shall be declared 
vacant, and such vacant seat shall be filled in accordance with applicable law of the State 
of Louisiana. 
 
It is desirable that members of the School Board have a genuine interest in and devotion 
to public education; a willingness to give time and effort to the work; a capacity for 
understanding people; and the ability to work cooperatively with others. 
 
Each School Board member should recognize that he/she is a public official charged with 
an important responsibility.  In view of the fact that School Board members are elected to 
their position, each member has a responsibility to the voters who have elected him/her; 
however, representation should serve the best interest of the school system as a whole 
rather than that of a single district. 
 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
Ref: Constitution of Louisiana, Art. VIII, Sec. 8 (a); La. Rev. Stat. Ann. ''17:52, 17.71.2, 

17:71.3, 17:72, 42:141. 



FILE:  B-3 
Cf:  A-5.2   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      1 of 2 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER CONTINUING EDUCATION 
 
 
SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER TRAINING 
 
Each City of Baker School Board member shall be required to receive a minimum of six 
(6) hours of training and instruction annually.  Training and instruction shall address such 
topics as the school laws of Louisiana,  laws governing the powers, duties and 
responsibilities of school boards, the Open Meetings law, the public bid law, and in 
educational trends, research, and policy.  Training and instruction shall also include 
education policy issues, such as including but not limited to, special education, the 
minimum foundation program and formula, leadership development, dropout prevention, 
school discipline, and harassment, intimidation, and bullying.  In a school district with a 
school(s) identified as academically unacceptable or in need of academic assistance, at 
least two (2) of the required hours shall focus on the improvement of schools identified as 
failing schools.   
 
Training and instruction may be received from a post-secondary education institution in 
Louisiana,  from instruction sponsored by the Louisiana Department of Education, from 
an in-service training program conducted by a school board central office or the Louisiana 
School Boards Association (LSBA), provided that the instruction and method for 
demonstrating attendance has been pre-approved by the LSBA, or training and 
instruction received at any conference presented by the National School Boards 
Association or by the Council of the Great City Schools, provided that verification of 
attendance by the School Board members at any such training is obtained.  Each School 
Board’s member’s attendance shall be reported by the instructor to the LSBA.  
 
Distinguished School Board Member 
 
A School Board member who has received a certificate of completion for a minimum of 
sixteen (16) hours of training and instruction during his/her first year of service on the 
School Board and has also received an annual certificate of completion of the required 
training for the subsequent three (3) consecutive years shall receive the designation of 
Distinguished School Board Member. 
 
Verification and Disclosure of Training 
  
The Superintendent shall be responsible for verifying that any of the training or instruction 
received by the School Board member meets statutory requirements.  The provider of 
any School Board member training and instruction shall issue a certificate of completion 
annually to those members who complete the required instruction.  A copy of the 
certificate shall be entered into the minutes of the School Board. 
 
At least annually, the Superintendent shall transmit to the School Board’s official journal 
a press release detailing the training and instruction received by each School Board 



FILE:  B-3 
Cf:  A-5.2   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      2 of 2 

member, as well as information on each School Board member who has been designated 
a Distinguished School Board Member. 
 
 
ETHICS EDUCATION AND TRAINING 
 
Each School Board member is required to receive a minimum of one (1) hour of education 
and training on the Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics during each year of his/her 
office.  All newly elected School Board members shall receive the required one (1) hour 
of education training within the first ninety (90) days after taking the oath of office. 
 
Campaign Finance Disclosure Training 
 
In addition to ethics training, a School Board member shall be required to receive a 
minimum of one (1) hour of education and training on the Campaign Finance Disclosure 
Act during his/her term of office. 
 
 
Revised:  May 19, 2009 
Revised:  November, 2010 
Revised:  May, 2013 
Revised:  May 3, 2016 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:53, 42:1170; Board minutes, 5-19-09, 5-3-16. 



FILE:  B-12.1 
Cf:  B-11, B-12.2, D-3.3 

City of Baker School District                                                                         1 of 2 

NOTIFICATION OF SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS 
 
  
The City of Baker School Board shall give written public notice of all regular meetings, if 
established by resolution, at the beginning of each calendar year.  The School Board shall 
also give written public notice of any regular, special, or rescheduled meeting, no later 
than twenty-four (24) hours, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays,  before 
the meeting.  In cases of extraordinary emergencies, such notice shall not be required, 
however, the School Board shall give such notice of the meeting as it deems appropriate 
and circumstances permit. 
 
Notice for committee meetings shall be given one (1) week in advance of the date of the 
meeting, whenever possible, but in no case less than twenty-four (24) hours, exclusive of 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays, prior to the meeting. 
 
Public notice of any meeting shall include the agenda, date, time, and place of the 
meeting.  The agenda included in the notice shall be reasonably clear so as to advise the 
public in general terms of each subject to be discussed at the public meeting.  In addition, 
attached to the written notice shall be information as to whether or not any matters will be 
discussed in executive session.  The notice shall indicate the following: 
 
 1. A statement identifying the court, case number, and the parties relative to 

any pending litigation to be considered at the meeting. 
 
 2. A statement identifying the parties involved and reasonably identifying the 

subject matter of any prospective litigation for which formal written demand 
has been made that is to be considered at the meeting. 

 
Written public notice given by the School Board shall include, but not be limited to: 
 
 1. Posting a copy of the notice at the School Board's central office or by 

publication of the notice in the School Board's official journal no less than 
twenty-four (24) hours, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays,  before the scheduled time of the meeting. 

 
2. Mailing a copy of the Giving notice to any member of the public or the news 

media who requests notice of such meetings; any such member of the news 
media shall be given notice of all meetings by providing the notice to the 
requestor at the same time and in the same manner as is given to members 
of the School Board. 

 
3. Submitting a notice of each meeting to the Commissioner of Administration 

in a manner and format that allows the Commissioner time to post the notice 
on its website prior to twenty-four (24) hours before the scheduled time of 
the meeting, as required or advised by the Commissioner of Administration. 

 



FILE:  B-12.1 
Cf:  B-11, B-12.2, D-3.3 

City of Baker School District                                                                         2 of 2 

 4. In addition to the above, by providing notice on the School Board’s website 
no less than twenty-four (24) hours, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays immediately preceding the meeting. 

 
 
Revised:  November, 2012 
Revised:  May 3, 2016 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:81, 42:19, 42:23; Board minutes, 5-3-16.  



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      1 of 6 

PURCHASING 
 
 
All purchasing for the school system to be paid from City of Baker School Board funds 
shall be made by the Superintendent or his/her designee in conformance with existing 
regulations and procedures of the School Board and the laws pertinent to state and 
federal agencies.  Budget allocations for specific purposes shall constitute advance 
School Board approval for all purchases except in such cases as state law or School 
Board policy may require.  No debt shall be contracted in the name of the City of Baker 
School Board without action by the School Board, except those items which are provided 
for in the regular budget.  Purchases shall be made at the lowest possible cost to the 
school system consistent with the system specifications of quality and service. 
 
Each principal shall assure that purchases by the individual school shall be made in 
accordance with applicable state and federal law and administrative regulations and 
procedures developed by the Superintendent and staff. 
 
No employee, officer or agent of the School Board shall participate in the selection, award, 
or administration of a contract or purchase of supplies, materials and equipment if a 
conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.  School Board employees shall 
neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, 
potential contractors, or parties to subagreements.  All purchasing shall comply with the 
U.S. Department of Education General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR), the 
Louisiana Public Bid Law, the Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics, the Louisiana 
Procurement Code, and applicable state or federal regulations, as applicable. 
 
USE OF FEDERAL FUNDS 
 
All procurement of materials, supplies, and services, as well as the construction of public 
works, funded in whole or in part with federal funds shall comply with the requirements 
contained in Title 2, Section 200, Sections 200.318 through 200.327, of the Code of 
Federal Regulations.  All procurements using federal funds, in whole or in part, shall 
employ one of the procedures identified in 2 CFR 200.320, if more stringent that those 
procedures required by Louisiana law.  Should the School Board adopt the Louisiana 
Procurement Code, whether in part or in its entirety, the accompanying administrative 
regulations as promulgated in the Louisiana Procurement Code, as well as guidelines 
and policies issued by the Louisiana’s Office of State Purchasing relevant to the particular 
adoption(s) may be applicable to the purchase, if more stringent. 
 
Solicitations from Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Business Enterprises, and 
Labor Surplus Area Firms 
 
When spending federal funds, the City of Baker School Board shall take all necessary 
affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and 
labor surplus area firms are used when possible.  Affirmative steps shall include: 



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      2 of 6 

1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business 
enterprises on solicitation lists; 

 
2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises 

are solicited whenever they are potential sources; 
 

3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or 
quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses and 
women’s business enterprises; 

 
4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which 

encourage participation by small and minority businesses and women’s business 
enterprises; 

 
5. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the 

Louisiana Economic Development Agency, and Small Business Administration 
and the Minority Business Development Agency of the United States Department 
of Commerce; and 

 
6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative 

steps listed in paragraphs 1 through 5 of this section. 
 
Exclusion or Rejection of Quotes or Bids 
 
A contract award or a purchase made with federal funds shall not be made to parties 
listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management 
maintained by the U.S. Government, which contains the names of parties debarred, 
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible 
under statutory or regulatory authority. 
 
USE OF STATE FUNDS 
 
Procurement of materials and supplies when using state or locally generated funds shall 
follow the procurement method as authorized by Louisiana law. 
 
Financing Purchases 
 
The School Board may finance the purchase of equipment or other movable property to 
be used by the School Board by entering into an installment sale, lease, or similar 
agreement with any lender or other person.  If required, such agreement shall be subject 
to approval of the State Bond Commission in accordance with statutory provisions.  No 
individual school or employee shall obligate the School Board without proper school 
system personnel knowledge and approval. 
 
 



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      3 of 6 

Use of State Contract 
 
If equipment, materials or supplies are available from a State of Louisiana Contract, the 
Superintendent and/or his/her designee may approve the purchase without using one of 
the purchasing procedures outlined in statutory provisions, if advantageous to the School 
Board. 
 
The School Board may also piggyback, or purchase materials and supplies on valid 
contracts of other political subdivisions in accordance with La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§33:1321-
1337 or La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §38:321.1. 
 
Louisiana Procurement Code 
 
State law authorizes School Boards to adopt all or any part of the Louisiana Procurement 
Code as contained in state statutes (La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§39:1551-39:1755).  For proper 
and efficient operations, the City of Baker School Board may adopt, by resolution or 
otherwise, pertinent provisions of the Louisiana Procurement Code, accompanying 
administrative regulations as promulgated in the Louisiana Procurement Code, as well as 
guidelines and policies issued by the state’s Office of State Purchasing relevant to the 
procurement of materials, supplies, merchandise, and other types of property. 
 
Sole Source Provider 
 
The School Board may award a contract for the purchase of supplies, services, or major 
repairs without competition when the Superintendent or designated employee has 
determined, in writing, that there is only one source for the supply, service, or major repair 
item(s) to be acquired.  Pertinent procedures for purchasing such items from a sole source 
shall be as outlined in the State of Louisiana Office of State Purchasing's Purchasing 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
Qualified Group Purchasing Organizations 
 
A qualified group purchasing organization means an organization, whether for profit or 
not for profit, of which two (2) or more public school districts are members and which 
solicits proposals or bids from vendors of materials, equipment, or supplies of the type 
and nature as may be purchased by a public school district or public school. 
 
As provided in La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §38:2212.1, the School Board may enter into an 
agreement with: (A) one or more School Boards to form a qualified group purchasing 
organization; or (B) one or more qualified group purchasing organizations for the 
purchase of materials, equipment, and supplies, including installation thereof.  Any such 
agreement shall require that the qualified group purchasing organization submit a price 
list for those materials, equipment, and supplies offered by it and that the prices quoted 
on the list remain in effect for a stated period of time of not less than three (3) months.  
Any such price list shall be considered, for all purposes, to be a valid and binding bid by 



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      4 of 6 

the qualified group purchasing organization during the effective period of the agreement, 
and no additional bid by the qualified group purchasing organization is necessary. 
 
The School Board may purchase materials, equipment, or supplies directly from or 
through a qualified group purchasing organization if either the price is less than that for 
the same or substantially similar materials, equipment, or supplies on the state contract 
or bid list, or if the same or substantially similar materials, equipment, or supplies are not 
under state contract or on the state bid list.  Nothing included in this paragraph shall be 
construed to authorize the School Board to purchase materials, equipment, or supplies 
from or through an entity or vendor other than a qualified group purchasing organization 
as defined herein without using a procurement process otherwise provided by state law. 
 
Reverse Auction 
 
The School Board may use a reverse auction in lieu of the more formal bid process when 
the School Board’s procurement officer determines that the electronic bidding is more 
advantageous and in the best interests of the School Board.  Reverse auction means a 
competitive online solicitation process on the Internet for the purchase of equipment, 
supplies, and other materials or consulting services. 
 
Prior to the use of the reverse auction, the School Board may require that:   

 
1. Vendors register before opening dates and time, and as part of the registration, 

require that the vendors agree to any terms and conditions and other 
requirements of the solicitation. 

 
2. Vendors be prequalified prior to placing bids and allow only bidders who are 

prequalified to submit bids. 
 
3. The solicitation shall designate an opening date and time and the closing date 

and time.  The closing date and time may be fixed or remain open depending on 
the structure of the item being bid. 

 
4. At the opening date and time, the School Board shall begin accepting online bids 

and continue accepting bids until the bidding is officially closed.  Registered 
bidders shall be allowed to lower the price of their bid below the lowest bid posted 
on the Internet until the closing date and time. 

 
5. Bidders’ identities shall not be revealed during the bidding process; only the 

successively lower prices, ranks, scores, and related bid details shall be revealed. 
 
6. All bids shall be posted electronically and updated on a real-time basis. 
 
7. The School Board shall retain the right to cancel the solicitation if it determines 

that it is in the School Board’s best interest. 



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      5 of 6 

8. The School Board shall retain its existing authority to determine the criteria that 
will be used as a basis for making awards. 

 
Adequate public notice for the purchases of materials, supplies, equipment, or consulting 
services using a reverse auction shall be given as follows: 
 
1. The advertisement or notice shall be published two (2) times in a newspaper in the 

locality, the first advertisement to appear at least fifteen (15) days before the 
opening date of the reverse auction.  In addition to the newspaper advertisement, 
the School Board may also publish an advertisement by electronic media available 
to the general public. 

 
2. The first publication of the advertisement shall not occur on a Saturday, Sunday, 

or legal holiday. 
 
VENDORS 
 
The School Board shall seek business and bids from all eligible vendors, regardless of 
race, creed, color, sex, national origin, age or handicap.  No favoritism shall be extended 
to any vendor.  Each order shall be placed on the basis of quality, price and delivery; past 
services being a factor if all other considerations are equal. 
 
No person officially connected with or employed by the School Board shall be an agent 
for, or have any pecuniary or beneficial interest in or receive any compensation or reward 
from any vendor for the sale of supplies, materials, equipment, services or public works 
contracts. 
 
No employee of the School Board shall solicit or accept, directly or indirectly, anything of 
economic value as a gift or gratuity from any vendor representative or agent of a vendor, 
or a prospective vendor or contractor. 
 
Vendors may set up an appointment to see the principal with written prior approval from 
the Superintendent.  The principal may present the information to the appropriate staff 
member.  If the staff member wishes to set up an appointment with the vendor to discuss 
products offered, he or she may do so. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FILE:  D-7.4 
Cf:  B-16, D-6.1, D-7.4b 

City of Baker School District                                                                                      6 of 6 

Revised:  November, 2011  Revised:  November 18, 2020 
Revised:  May 3, 2016  Revised:  February 1, 2022 
Revised:  September, 2016 Revised:  April, 2024 
Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  March 3, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: 2 CFR 200 (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards), 48 CFR 2.101 (Definitions); La. Rev. Stat. Ann. 
§§33:1321-1337, 33:4712.7, 38:321.1 38:2211, 38:2212, 38:2212.1, 38:2214, 
38:2218, 38:2219, 38:2271, 39:1551, 39:1552, 39:1553, 39:1554, 39:1554.1, 
39:1556, 39:1557, 39:1558, 39:1597, 39:1710; Board minutes, 5-3-16, 7-25-18, 3-
3-20, 11-18-20, 2-1-22. 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  1 of 9 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
DISASTER RECOVERY PROCUREMENT 

 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
No employee, officer, or agent of the Ascension Parish School Board shall participate in 
the selection or in the award or administration of a contract supported by Disaster Recovery 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds if a conflict of interest, real or 
apparent, would be involved.   Such a conflict could arise if the employee, officer or agent; 
any member of his/her immediate family; his/her partner; or an organization which employs 
or is about to employ any of the above, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected 
for award. 
 
No officer, employee or agent of the Ascension Parish School Board shall solicit or accept 
gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors or firms, potential 
contractors or firms, or parties to sub-agreements, except where the financial interest is not 
substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. 
 
Any alleged violations of these standards of conduct shall be referred to the Ascension 
Parish School Board attorney.  Where violations appear to have occurred, the offending 
employee, officer or agent shall be subject to disciplinary action, including but not limited 
to dismissal or transfer; where violations or infractions appear to be substantial in nature, 
the matter may be referred to the appropriate officials for criminal investigation and possible 
prosecution. 
 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES 
 
The director or supervisor of each department or agency of the Ascension Parish School 
Board responsible for procurement of services, supplies, equipment, or construction 
obtained with Disaster Recovery CDBG funds shall review all proposed procurement 
actions to avoid the purchase of unnecessary or duplicative items.  Such reviews shall 
consider consolidation or breaking out to obtain a more economical purchase.  When 
determined appropriate by the Director or Supervisor, an analysis to determine which 
approach would be the most economical shall be undertaken. 
 
The Ascension Parish School Board shall take affirmative steps to assure that small and 
minority firms, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus firms are solicited 
whenever they are potential qualified sources.  The Ascension Parish School Board shall 
also consider the feasibility of dividing total requirements into smaller tasks or quantities 
so as to permit maximum participation by small and minority firms, women’s business 
enterprises, and labor surplus firms.  Where permitted by regulations, delivery schedules 
will be developed which will include participation by such businesses. 
 
The Ascension Parish School Board shall assist the prime contractor whenever possible 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  2 of 9 

by providing copies of lists which identify qualified small and minority firms, women’s 
business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms. 
 
SELECTION PROCEDURES 
 
ALL procurement carried out with Disaster Recovery CDBG funds, where the Ascension 
Parish School Board is a direct party, shall be carried out in a manner that provides 
maximum free and open competition.  Procurement procedures will not restrict or eliminate 
competition.  The Ascension Parish School Board shall not place unreasonable 
requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business.  Nor will the Ascension 
Parish School Board encourage or participate in noncompetitive practices among firms.  
The Ascension Parish School Board is alert to organizational conflicts which would 
jeopardize the negotiation process and limit competition.  The Ascension Parish School 
Board will not require unnecessary experience or bonding requirements. 
 
Pursuant to state law and federal regulations (2 CFR 200.318), all solicitations of offers 
shall incorporate a clear accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, 
service, or product to be procured.  In competitive procurements, these descriptions shall 
not contain features which unduly limit competition.  The description may include a 
statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service and the minimum 
essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended 
use.  Detailed product specifications shall be avoided whenever possible.  A “brand name 
or equal” description may be used to define the performance or other salient requirements 
of procurement.  The specific features of the named brand which must be met by offerors 
shall be clearly stated. 
 
All solicitations of offers shall clearly set forth all requirements which offerors must fulfill 
and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids, proposals, or statements of qualifications. 
 
Contracts shall be awarded only to responsible contractors/firms that possess the 
potential ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed 
procurement. 
 
Consideration shall be given to such factors as the contractor’s/firm’s capacity, integrity, 
compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical 
resources. 
 
METHODS OF PROCUREMENT 
 
Direct procurement by the Ascension Parish School Board shall be made by using one 
of the following methods depending on the type of service to be procured. 
 
Small Purchase Procedures 
 
Relatively simple, informal procurement procedures will be used where the purchase of 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  3 of 9 

materials, single task services, supplies, equipment, and/or other property will not cost in 
the aggregate more than $100,000, except where further limited by state law or Disaster 
Recovery CDBG policy.  The procurement officer must obtain a minimum of three oral or 
written price or rate quotations from qualified sources.  Documentation on all quotations 
received (whether oral or written) shall be made a part of the file.  Selections shall be made 
principally on price.  Payment shall be made upon delivery or completion. 
 
Competitive Sealed Bids/Formal Advertising 
 
Under this procedure bids are publicly advertised in accordance with the state’s Public Bid 
Law.  A firm fixed price contract (either lump sum or unit price) shall be awarded to the 
responsible bidder whose bid is lowest in price and that conforms to all the material 
terms and conditions of the advertisement for bids. 
 
Competitive sealed bids can be used ONLY when the following criteria are met: (1) there 
are complete, adequate, and realistic specifications or purchase descriptions; (2) there are 
two or more responsible bidders who are willing and able to compete effectively; (3) the 
procurement can be made on a firm fixed- price contract and selection of the successful 
bidder can appropriately be made principally on the basis of price. 
 
When formal advertising is used the following conditions shall be met. 
 
1.    The advertisement for bids shall be publicly advertised in accord with state law. 
 
2.  The advertisement for bids, including the specifications and pertinent attachments, 

shall clearly define the items or services needed in order for the bidders to properly 
respond to the advertisement. 

 
3.   All bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place specified in the advertisement 

for bids. 
 
4.    A firm fixed-price contract award shall be made by written notice to the lowest 

responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the advertisement for bids.  Where 
specified in the bid documents, factors such as discounts, transportation costs, and 
life cycle costs shall be considered in determining which bid is lowest.  Payment 
discounts shall only be used to determine low bid when prior experience indicates 
that such discounts are generally taken. 

 
5.    Notwithstanding the above, any or all bids may be rejected when there are sound 

documented business reasons in the best interest of the Disaster Recovery CDBG 
Program. 

 
Competitive Negotiation:  Requests for Proposals/Qualification Statements 
 
The technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one source 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  4 of 9 

submitting an offer.  All competitive proposals shall be conducted using a formal RFP/RFQ 
containing at least the minimum items in the attached RFP/RFQ Outline (See Attachment 
A).  It is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids.  
Architectural and engineering services must be procured via requests for qualification 
statements; administrative consulting services must be procured via requests for proposals.  
Other professional services may also be procured by requests for proposals.  The 
following procedures will be used for competitive negotiation: 
 
1. Requests for proposals or qualification statements must be advertised in a 

newspaper in the nearest metropolitan area in accordance with the rules of the 
state’s Disaster Recovery CDBG Program.  All submittals will be honored and 
entered into the competition. 

 
2. Request for proposals or qualification statements shall contain a detailed list of 

tasks in the proposed scope of work that is expected to be accomplished. 
 
3.       The request for proposals or qualification statements shall identify all significant 

evaluation factors or selection criteria, including the corresponding point system that 
will be used to rate the proposals/qualification statements.  Requests for proposals 
shall always include cost and at least one non-cost evaluation factor. 

 
4.     The selecting official (or committee, if one is designated) shall review all proposals 

and statements received and make a technical evaluation of each.  This shall also 
include a written statement that identifies the basis upon which the selection was 
made; including the importance of cost (for RFPs). 

 
 5. Contract award will be made to the responsible offeror whose submission is deemed 

most appropriate to the Ascension Parish School Board with consideration for price, 
qualifications, and other factors set by the local governing body.  Unsuccessful 
offerors shall be notified in writing within ten working days of contract award.  
Documentation of notification shall be maintained in the contract selection file for 
the individual project. 

 
For qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional 
services whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified 
competitor is selected, at least three firms will be solicited.  Following the review of the 
qualification statements received, the most qualified competitor will be selected to enter 
into contract negotiation.  This shall always include negotiation of price to insure cost 
reasonableness.  At the conclusion of successful negotiation, the competitor shall be 
invited to enter into a contract. 
 
Noncompetitive Negotiation/Sole Source 
 
Noncompetitive negotiation shall be used when small purchase, formal advertising, or 
competitive negotiation procedures are not feasible.  Noncompetitive negotiation will 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  5 of 9 

involve solicitations of a proposal from only one source.  This can also occur if solicitations 
under the competitive negotiation procedures result in only one proposal or qualification 
statement.  Noncompetitive negotiation shall only be used when written authorization has 
been obtained from the state’s Office of Community Development/Disaster Recovery Unit 
(OCD/DRU).  In order to qualify for this type of procurement, one of the following 
circumstances must apply: 
 
1. The item or service is available only from a single source; 
 
2. It is determined that a public urgency or emergency exists and the urgency will 

not permit the delay beyond the time needed to employ one of the other three 
methods of procurement. 

 
3. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate. 
 
CONTRACT PRICING 
 
Cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of contracting 
MUST NOT be used.  The Ascension Parish School Board shall perform cost or pricing 
analysis in connection with EVERY procurement action including contract modifications 
in accordance with the requirements of “Cost and Price Analysis for HUD Grantees and 
Funding Recipients”.  Costs or prices based on estimated costs for Disaster Recovery 
CDBG projects shall be allowed only to the extent that the costs incurred or the cost 
estimates included in negotiated prices are consistent with federal cost principals [48 CFR 
Part 31].  Lump sum prices will only be utilized when there is a definable work product and 
the quantity to be provided is certain and the contractor assumes all the risk for costs 
incurred.  Unit prices can be utilized when there is a definable work product and the 
contractor assume all the risk for costs incurred, but the quantity is estimated.  Cost 
reimbursement will be utilized when the task does not result in a definable work product 
or the contractor will not assume the risk of incurring the cost to complete the task.  Cost 
reimbursement, unit or lump sum price, or a combination thereof may be utilized as 
appropriate. 
 
A cost reimbursement type contract is most appropriate when the scope and extent of the 
work to be performed are not clearly defined, such as a professional services contract.  
A cost reimbursement contract MUST clearly establish a cost ceiling which may not be 
exceeded without formally amending the contract, and must identify a fixed dollar profit that 
may not be increased unless there is a contract amendment that increases the scope of the 
work. 
 
A fixed price contract is appropriate when the scope of work is very well defined and product 
oriented.  A fixed price contract can only be awarded when fair and reasonable prices can 
be established through adequate price competition and the solicitation is based principally 
on price.  A fixed price contract MUST establish a guaranteed price that may not increase 
unless there is a contract amendment that increases the scope of the work. 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  6 of 9 

PROCUREMENT RECORDS 
 
The Ascension Parish School Board shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history 
of the procurement.  The records shall include the following contract provisions and 
conditions: 
 
1. Contracts other than small purchase shall contain provisions that allow for 

administrative, contractual, or legal remedies if contractors violate or breach contract 
terms, and provide for sanctions and penalties as appropriate. 

 
2. All contracts in excess of $10,000 shall provide for termination for cause and for 

convenience by the Ascension Parish School Board including the manner in which 
it will be done and the basis for settlement. 

 
3.      All construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of $10,000 shall include 

provisions which require compliance with Executive Order 11246, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as 
supplemented in DOL regulations (41 CFR Part 60). 

 
4. All contracts and subcontracts for construction or repair shall include a provision for 

compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kick-Back” Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented 
by DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 3). 

 
5. All contracts or subcontracts in excess of $2,000 for construction or repair shall 

include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 USC 276a to a-7) 
as supplemented by DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 5). 

 
6.     All construction or repair contracts or subcontracts in excess of $2,000, and in 

excess of $2,500 for other contracts which involve the employment or mechanics or 
laborers, shall include a provision for compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-330) as supplemented 
by DOL regulations (29 CFR Part 5). 

 
7.   Each contract shall include a notice of OCD/DRU requirements and regulations 

pertaining to reporting and patent rights under any contract involving respect to any 
discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such 
contract, and of the state requirements pertaining to copyrights and rights in data. 

 
8. All negotiated contracts shall include a provision that makes it possible for the 

OCD/DRU, HUD, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, to have access to any books, documents, papers, or 
records of the contractor/firm that are directly pertinent to the contract, for the 
purpose of making audit examination excerpts and transcriptions.  Further, the 
contract must include a provision that all required records will be maintained by the 
contractor/firm for a period of five years after the Ascension Parish School Board 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  7 of 9 

formally closes out each Disaster Recovery CDBG program. 
 
9.    All contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants in amounts in excess of $100,000 

shall contain a provision which requires compliance with the requirements of Section 
306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 1857 h), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 
USC 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency 
regulations (40 CFR part 15). 

 
10. Contracts shall recognize mandatory standards and policies relating to energy 

efficiency that are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued in 
compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 

 
11.      The Ascension Parish School Board will be permitted to require changes, 

remedies, changed conditions, access and record retention, and suspension of work 
clauses approved by the OCD/DRU. 

 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Ascension Parish School Board shall maintain contract administration systems that 
ensure contractors/firms perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and 
specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.  The accepted performance of 
contractors/firms will be a factor in subsequent contract negotiations and award.  Remedial 
action by the Ascension Parish School Board through legal processes shall be considered 
in instances of identified significant nonperformance. 
 
Adopted:  June 15, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref:   33 USC 1388 (Section 508 Clean Water Act); 40 USC 276a to a-7 (Davis-Bacon 

Act); 18 USC 874 (Anti-Kick-Back); 40 USC 327-330 (Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act); 42 USC 1857 h (Section 306 Clean Air Act); 2 CFR 200 318-
326 (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards); 29 CFR Part 3; 29 CFR Part 5 (DOL Regulations); 40 CFR part 
15 (Executive Order 11738 Environmental Protection Agency); 41 CFR Part 60; 48 
CFR Part 31 (Federal Cost Principles); P.L. 94-163 (Energy Policy and Conservation 
Act); Board minutes, 6-15-21. 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  8 of 9 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
ATTACHMENT A - RFP/RFQ OUTLINE 

 
 
A well-written RFP or RFQ will contain all of the information the proposers need to know 
in a manner that captures interest and is easy to follow.  The RFP or RFQ should consist 
of an introduction and five sections, each of which is summarized briefly on this page: 
 
1.  Advertisement/Purpose (Introduction) - Cover letter to summarize the services being 

solicited and the due date for proposals. 
 
2.  Program Information - Include an overview of the grant/project status and a summary 

of the roles and responsibilities of all involved parties to provide the context for the 
solicited services and capture the interest of potential respondents. 

 
3.  Scope of Services - Start with an overview of the solicited services, summarize 

general expectations, specify the anticipated role of the selected firm, and  provide  
a  detailed  list  of  tasks  to  be accomplished.  Should be connected to the fee 
proposal and be detailed enough to be in the final contract. 

 
• Statement of Work (RFP only):  List in detail the tasks the selected consultant 

will be expected to perform.  List must be detailed enough for consultant to 
provide price or estimated cost for the services. 

 
4.  Submission and Evaluation Requirements - Describe what sections should be 

included in the proposal (e.g.  approach, organization chart or staffing plan, fee 
proposal (RFP only), etc.) and what information each of those sections should 
contain.  Also describe the criteria the Committee will use to evaluate the proposal 
and the weights for each criterion.  Submission requirements and evaluation criteria 
should be linked. 

 
• Approach section (RFP):  For each task identified in the scope of work, 

respondent is to describe how they would accomplish the task(s). 
 

• Project staffing:  Include an organization chart, names and roles of principal 
staff members, time commitments for principal staff members, and attach 
resumes. 
 

• Qualifications:  Include project summaries for your team’s relevant 
experience, organized by firm or by type of experience. 
 

• Fee proposal (RFP only):  Price for services described in the approach, broken 
out by task. 
 



FILE:  DJEB 
Cf:  DJE, DJED 

 

Ascension Parish School Board  9 of 9 

• Evaluation Criteria:  List the criteria on which the proposals will be evaluated 
(e.g. creativity of approach, reasonableness of fee, quality of relevant 
qualifications, previous experience, etc.) and give the weighting for each 
criteria. 

 
5. Schedule and Required Information - Provide information about the procurement 

not related to the actual project.  This includes a schedule/timetable for the 
procurement, information on written questions and pre-proposal conference, 
contractual obligations, information on conflict of interest, and all other required 
clauses. 

 
6.   Attachments - Provide any required forms (e.g. form for fee proposal or 

Certifications/Assurances), further clarify the expectations by including a sample 
contract, copies of the roles/ responsibilities checklist, and/or scopes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FILE:  F-9.2 
Cf:  F-9.3, F-9.5, F-9.15 

Cf:  F-9.16, F-9.17   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      1 of 4 

 COMPENSATION 
 
 
SALARY SCHEDULES 
 
Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the City of Baker School Board shall 
establish salary schedules that shall be used to determine the salaries to be paid to 
teachers and all other school employees. Salaries of all teachers shall be set by the 
Superintendent.  The salaries of all personnel are generally based upon an established 
salary schedule; provided, however, that salaries may be stated in and controlled by an 
employment contract.  The Administrative Procedures have been set forth to establish 
initial placement on the Single Lane Salary Schedule. 
 
Salary schedules shall be established and published not later than June thirtieth annually 
and shall apply during the school year that begins that year.  The salaries as provided in 
any salary schedule shall be considered as full compensation for all the work required 
and performed within by each employee’s within his/her prescribed scope of duties and 
responsibilities which include only those specifically identified and described in the 
employee’s job description.   
 
Additional compensation shall be provided as follows: 
 

1. In addition to all other compensation to which a teacher is entitled, the School 
Board shall compensate any teacher who is not afforded the minimum 
uninterrupted planning time required by La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §17:434(A) at the 
effective hourly rate of that teacher for each hour of planning time.   A teacher’s 
effective hourly rate shall be calculated by converting the teacher’s annual salary 
on the teacher’s salary schedule into an hourly rate of pay. 

 
2. The School Board shall adopt a uniform supplemental salary schedule that 

addresses compensation for duties performed by certified employees beyond the 
scope of their prescribed duties and responsibilities, in accordance with 
requirements of La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §17:418 (A). 

 
Salary schedules established for teachers, administrators, and other certified school 
personnel shall be based upon the following criteria, with no one criterion accounting for 
more than fifty percent (50%) of the formula used to compute such employees' salaries: 
 
1.  Effectiveness, as determined by the performance evaluation program as provided 

in La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:3881 through 3905. 
 
2.    Demand, inclusive of area of certification, particular school need, geographic area, 

and subject area, which may include advanced degree levels. 
 
3. Experience. 



FILE:  F-9.2 
Cf:  F-9.3, F-9.5, F-9.15 

Cf:  F-9.16, F-9.17   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      2 of 4 

No teacher or administrator who is rated ineffective pursuant to the Board’s performance 
evaluation program shall receive a higher salary in the year following the evaluation than 
the teacher/administrator received in the year of the evaluation. 
 
The amount of the annual salary paid to any employee in any school year shall not be 
reduced below the amount of such salary paid during the previous school year, nor shall 
the amount of the annual salary paid to any employee be reduced at any time during an 
academic year.  The limitations on the reduction in the amount of the annual salary paid 
to any employee shall not be applicable to:  
 
1. The correction of any accounting errors or to a reduction necessitated by the 

elimination of a state program or state funding; 
 
2. The reduction of any local salary supplement funded, in whole or in part, from a 

revenue source requiring voter approval, when such voter approval has not been 
obtained;   

3. An employee who has been promoted and subsequently demoted to a lower 
position. In this case, the employee’s salary shall return to the salary previously 
received in the lower position from which promoted; or 

 
4. The elimination, discontinuance, or reorganization of the position to which the 

employee is assigned that results in the employee working fewer hours, days, or 
months.  In such case, the employee’s salary for that academic year shall not be 
reduced.  After that year, the employee’s salary shall be determined in accordance 
with the applicable salary schedule for the employee’s position. 

 
Ordinarily, no teacher shall be placed on the payroll of the school district unless the 
teacher holds a valid certificate as required by law, and a copy of the teacher's contract 
has been filed with the Superintendent.  Exceptions may be made only when qualified 
teachers with valid certification are not available for employment. 
 
Experience Credit 
 
A year of teaching experience is defined as each scholastic year of employment as a 
certified teacher in public schools within any of the fifty states of the United States of 
America, or within any of its territorial possessions; or as a teacher in a private or parochial 
school, as an employee in a state department of education, or as an instructor in an 
institution of higher learning.  All such experience must have been as a teacher in an 
institution or school accredited by one of the recognized regional accrediting agencies in 
the United States of America (e.g., SACS).  Experience outside the United States of 
America, its territories or possessions must be in an institution or school accredited by an 
accrediting agency recognized by the United States of America. 
 
A year of teaching experience shall be granted if the person was employed for at least 
ninety-one (91) instructional days during one scholastic year, excluding holidays, as 



FILE:  F-9.2 
Cf:  F-9.3, F-9.5, F-9.15 

Cf:  F-9.16, F-9.17   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      3 of 4 

verified by the Superintendent.  However, not more than one (1) year of experience shall 
be granted for a period inclusive of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months.  All 
experience must have been on a full-time basis. 
 
Any teacher holding a valid Louisiana teaching certificate in the public school system of 
Louisiana who has transferred to Louisiana from a public school system of another state 
and who, at the time of such transfer, held a valid teacher's certificate from that state, 
shall be given full credit under the salary schedule for the years of satisfactory teaching 
service previously rendered in the public school system of that state. Credit for previous 
teaching experience shall also be granted to anyone employed who holds a valid 
Louisiana teaching certificate and is employed or has been employed by another public 
school system in the state. 
 
Advanced Degree  
 
When a teacher earns additional college credit, is awarded an advanced degree, or 
receives additional training that would result in an increase in salary, said teacher shall 
be paid for the advanced degree or training beginning with the next school semester after 
all necessary documentation has been received from the Louisiana Department of 
Education.  It shall be the responsibility of the employee to assure proper notification is 
given to the Superintendent or his/her designee. The increase in salary shall be pro-
rated based on the number of contract days left in the fiscal year based upon the date 
of the advanced degree placed by the Louisiana Department of Education of the higher 
degree on the educator's licensure. Any advanced degree obtained between one 
school year and another school year shall take effect during the upcoming school year. 
 
Retirees 
 
The salary of any retiree who is reemployed as a full-time teacher shall be based on the 
salary schedule which accounts for all prior years of teaching service and pertinent 
experience.  The status of any retiree who is reemployed shall be the same as a full-time 
active employee, subject to all applicable rules, procedures, policies, and statutes that 
apply to all such full-time active employees. 
 
The retirement of an employee prior to his/her re-employment as a retiree shall constitute 
a break in his/her service with the School Board for purposes of tenure and sabbatical 
leave.  The retiree shall not be allowed to carry forward annual leave days accumulated 
by him/her as of the date of his/her retirement, but he/she may carry forward accumulated 
sick leave days provided that he/she has returned to employment within five (5) years of 
his/her last employment as a teacher within the school system.  A retiree shall have the 
right to earn additional sick leave and annual leave, if applicable, on the same basis as 
other similarly situated newly hired employees while a retiree. 
 
 
 



FILE:  F-9.2 
Cf:  F-9.3, F-9.5, F-9.15 

Cf:  F-9.16, F-9.17   

City of Baker School District                                                                                      4 of 4 

School Employees  
 
Compensation for all school employees shall be based on applicable salary schedules or 
hourly rates established by the City of Baker School Board, with the exception that no 
employee shall receive less than the minimum established by state or federal law.   

For the purposes of determination of initial salaries of new school employees, the 
City of Baker School System shall have the flexibility to use up to fifty percent (50%) 
of the total number of years of comparable and/or related service/experience in a 
private setting/agency; however, all verifiable public school full-time experience will 
be given. 

 
For the purpose of this subsection, school employee shall mean any employee of the 
School Board who is not required to hold a teacher's certificate as a condition of 
employment, including, but not limited to, bus operator, food service worker, 
paraeducator, custodian, and maintenance personnel. 
 
 
Revised:  October, 2001 
Combined with F-10.1:  September, 2006 
Revised:  June, 2012 
Revised:  May 3, 2016 
Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  July 11, 2023 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: 29 USC 201 et seq. (Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended); La. Rev. 

Stat. Ann. §§11:710, 17:81; 17:83, 17:84, 17:84.1, 17:411, 17:413, 17:418,  
17:419.2, 17:421.4, 17:422.6, 17:496, 17:496.1, 17:497, 17:497.1, 17:498; Wright 
v. Caldwell Parish School Board, 30.448 (La. App. 2 Cir. 6/16/99);  Garcia v. San 
Antonio Metropolitan Transit Authority et al., 105 S. Ct. 1005 (February 1985); 
Harrah Independent School District v. Martin, 99 S. Ct. 1062 (1979); Board 
minutes, 3-8-00, 5-3-16, 7-25-18, 7-11-23. 

http://www4.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode29/usc_sup_01_29_10_8.html


FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  1 of 8 

SICK LEAVE 
 
 
The City of Baker School Board shall grant all employees hired for the school year or 
longer a minimum of ten (10) days absence per year because of personal illness or other 
emergencies or special circumstances without loss of pay.  Sick leave shall be granted 
according to the following: 
 
 Nine and ten month employees  10 days per year 
 Eleven month employees   11 days per year 
 Twelve month employees   12 days per year 
 
Sick leave, when not used, shall be allowed to accumulate to the credit of the employee 
without limitation.  However, upon initial employment, a teacher employed by the School 
Board shall not be allowed any sick leave until he or she reports for duty and actually 
performs work. 
 
The minimum of ten (10) days of sick leave for an employee shall be based on the 
employee beginning work at the beginning of the school year.  In the case of an employee 
beginning work in the first month of the school year, ten days sick leave shall be allowed.  
If an employee begins work in the second month of the school year, nine days of sick 
leave shall be allowed, and the number of days of sick leave shall continue to be prorated 
for an employee who begins work until the eighth month of the school year, when only 
three days of sick leave shall be allowed.  The Superintendent and/or his/her designee 
shall be responsible for developing and maintaining pertinent regulations and procedures 
governing sick leave. 
 
TERMINOLOGY 
 
Statutes governing sick leave for School Board personnel include differing provisions for 
different categories of employees.  For purposes of this policy, the following terminology 
shall apply: 
 

• A teacher shall mean any employee who holds a valid teaching certificate or 
whose employment requires the holding of a teaching certificate, or any social 
worker, school counselor, or school psychologist who holds, as applicable, a 
valid professional ancillary certificate. 
 

• A bus operator shall mean any employee who is employed as a school bus 
operator. 
 

• A school employee shall mean an employee who is not a teacher or a school 
bus operator. 
 

• The use of the term employee shall include all three (3) categories of personnel. 
 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  2 of 8 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ABSENCE 
 
An employee who is absent for six (6) or more consecutive days shall be required to 
present a certificate from a physician, physician assistant clinician certifying such illness.  
Clinician means a physician, physician assistant providing healthcare services in 
accordance with Louisiana law, or an advanced practice registered nurse practitioner 
providing healthcare services in accordance with Louisiana law, certifying such absence 
upon return to work.  In the case of repeated absences of less than six (6) days because 
of illness, the School Board reserves the right to require verification of illness.  Should a 
pattern of behavior so warrant, upon the request of the Superintendent or School Board, 
the employee shall be required, at the expense of the School Board, to provide a 
certificate from a physician clinician specified by the Superintendent or School Board, in 
order to verify the existence of an illness, injury, or  a medical emergency.necessity. 
 
Excuses for employee absences due to illness or injury must be provided on physician’s 
clinician’s letterhead containing the physician’s clinician’s name, address, and telephone 
number, typed, printed, or as part of the letterhead.  The physician’s clinician’s typed or 
neatly printed name shall also appear beneath his/her signature.  The letter must clearly 
state the reason for the illness or injury, date of the illness or injury, and the anticipated 
return-to-work date.   
 
If an employee is absent from duty under circumstances in which he/she is not entitled to 
any kind of leave, such employee shall be considered to be in violation of his/her contract, 
and is not entitled to be paid for the days of unauthorized absence and non-performance 
of duties. 
 
SICK LEAVE FOR EMERGENCIES 
 
Emergencies for sick leave purposes shall be defined by the School Board as: 
 
1. Illness or death within the immediate family - husband, wife, children and their 

spouses, parents, brothers and sisters and their spouses; spouse's parents, 
brothers and sisters and their spouses; grandparents and grandchildren (including 
step-relations); 

 
2. Weather conditions - hurricane, tornado, snowstorm, flood, accident, when 

approved by the Superintendent or designee; 
 
3. Court summons; or 
 
4. Other unusual circumstances as approved by the Superintendent or designee. 
 
EXTENDED SICK LEAVE 
 
The School Board shall permit employees to take up to ninety (90) days of extended sick 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  3 of 8 

leave in each six-year period of employment which may be used for a medical necessity 
at any time the employee has no remaining regular sick leave balance at the time the 
extended sick leave is set to begin.  The initial six-year period of employment shall begin 
on August 15, 1999 for all teachers and bus operators employed as of that date, on 
August 15, 2008 for school employees employed as of that date, or on the effective date 
of employment for those employees employed after the dates above.  All decisions 
relative to the granting of extended sick leave shall be made by the Superintendent. 
 
Unused days during any six-year period of employment shall not cumulate or carry 
forward into the next six-year period of employment.  The balance of days of extended 
sick leave available shall transfer with the employee from one public school employer to 
another without loss or restoration of days. 
 
Interruptions of service between periods of employment with a public school employer 
shall not be included in any calculation of a six-year period, such that any employment 
with any public school employer, regardless of when it occurs, shall be included in any 
determination of the balance of days of extended sick leave available to the employee. 
 
Any employee on extended sick leave shall be paid sixty-five percent (65%) of the salary 
paid the employee at the time the extended sick leave begins. 
 
Definitions 
 
Child means a biological son or daughter, an adopted son or daughter, a foster son or 
daughter, a stepson or daughter, or a legal ward of an employee standing in loco parentis 
to that ward who is either under the age of eighteen (18) or who is eighteen (18) years of 
age but under twenty-four (24) years of age and is a full-time student, or who is nineteen 
(19) years of age or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical 
disability. 
 
Immediate family member shall mean a spouse, parent, or child of the employee. 
 
Infant means a child under one year of age. 
 
Medical necessity shall be the result of a catastrophic illness or injury, a life-threatening, 
chronic, or incapacitating condition, as certified by a physician clinician, of the employee 
or a member of his/her immediate family. 
 
Parent means the biological parent of an employee or an individual who stood in loco 
parentis to the employee. 
 
Extended Sick Leave for Maternity or Adoptive Purposes 
 
Each teacher employee granted maternity or adoptive leave in accordance with state law 
and who has no remaining sick leave balance available may be granted up to (30) days 
of additional extended sick leave in each six-year period of employment for personal 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  4 of 8 

illness relating to pregnancy, illness of an infant, or for required medical visits certified by 
a physician clinician as relating to infant or maternal health, prior to extended sick leave 
being taken. 
 
Gainful Employment Permitted 
 
An employee may undertake additional gainful employment while on extended sick leave, 
provided all of the following conditions are met: 
 
1. The employee can demonstrate that he/she will be working not more than twenty 

(20) hours a week in a part-time job that the employee has been working for not 
less than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the beginning of any period of 
extended sick leave. 

 
2. The physician clinician who certifies the medical necessity of the leave indicates 

that such part-time work does not impair the purpose for which the extended sick 
leave is required. 

 
Any violation of the provisions regarding gainful employment may require the employee 
to return to the School Board all compensation paid during any week of extended sick 
leave in which the employee worked more than twenty (20) hours and to reimburse the 
School Board all related employment costs attributable to such period as calculated by 
the School Board, without any restoration of leave days. 
 
Application Process 
 
On every occasion that a teacher an employee uses extended sick leave, a statement 
from a licensed physician clinician certifying that it is for personal illness relating to 
pregnancy, illness of an infant, or for required medical visits related to infant or maternal 
health, or that it is a medical necessity, shall be presented prior to extended sick leave 
being taken. 
 
On every occasion that a bus operator or school employee uses extended sick leave, a 
statement from a licensed physician certifying that it is a medical necessity for the bus 
operator or school employee to be absent for at least ten (10) consecutive work days shall 
be presented prior to extended sick leave being taken. 
 
The required physician’s clinician’s statement may be presented along with the request 
for extended sick leave subsequent to the teacher’s or school employee’s return to 
service. In such a case, the extended sick leave shall be granted for all days for which 
extended sick leave is requested, provided the request and required documentation are 
presented within three (3) days after the teacher or school employee returns to service.  
However, the School Board or Superintendent reserves the right to question the validity 
of the medical certification after the three (3) day period. 
 
If the period an employee is on extended sick leave is anticipated to carry over from one 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  5 of 8 

school year to the start of the next school year, another application and physician’s 
clinician’s statement shall be submitted prior to the start of the next school year in order 
to be eligible for continued extended sick leave. 
 
SICK LEAVE FOR ASSAULT OR BATTERY 
 
Any employee of the public schools who is disabled while acting in his/her official capacity 
as a result of an assault or battery by any student or person shall receive sick leave 
without reduction in pay, and without reduction in accrued sick leave days while disabled 
as a result of such assault and battery.  A teacher shall be required to provide a certificate 
from a physician certifying the disability.  A bus operator or school employee shall be 
required to present certification of the disability from a physician if the bus operator or 
school employee is absent for six (6) or more consecutive days as a result of the disability. 
 
Disability, for purposes of this policy, shall mean the inability to perform the essential 
functions of the job. 
 
The sick leave authorized shall be in addition to all other sick leave authorized herein, 
shall not be accumulated from year to year, nor shall such additional sick leave be 
compensated for at death or retirement, or compensated for in any manner except as set 
forth above. 
 
The School Board shall not reduce the pay or accrued sick leave of any employee who is 
absent from his/her duties to seek medical attention or treatment as a result of an injury 
from assault or battery. 
 
If the employee’s physician determines that the employee is able to return to regular 
duties with restrictions and the School Board does not allow the employee to return to 
duty with those restrictions, the employee’s leave shall be granted or continued as 
provided by statute. 
 
If any employee is receiving sick leave as a result of assault or battery as provided in this 
section and begins receiving retirement benefits, the sick leave provided herein shall 
cease. 
 
SICK LEAVE FOR PHYSICAL CONTACT WITH A STUDENT 
 
Any teacher who is disabled while acting in his/her official capacity as a result of physical 
contact with a student while providing physical assistance to a student to prevent danger 
or risk of injury to the student, shall receive sick leave for a period of up to one (1) calendar 
year without reduction in pay and without reduction in accrued sick leave days while 
disabled as a result of rendering such assistance Any school employee, but not a bus 
operator, disabled, as defined in La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §17:1200(C), in a similar manner 
shall receive up to ninety (90) days one (1) year of such sick leave.  The teacher or school 
employee shall be required to present a certificate from a physician certifying the 
disability.  The School Board may extend the period of sick leave beyond the allowable 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  6 of 8 

period at its discretion. 
 
The School Board shall not reduce the pay or accrued sick leave of any teacher or school 
employee who is absent from his/her duties to seek medical attention or treatment as a 
result of an injury from physical contact with a student. 
 
If the teacher’s or school employee’s physician determines that the employee is able to 
return to regular duties with restrictions and the School Board does not allow the 
employee to return to duty with those restrictions, the teacher’s or school employee’s 
leave shall be granted or continued as provided by statute. 
 
VALIDITY OF PHYSICIAN’S CLINICIAN’S CERTIFICATION 
 
If at any time during the period of certified disability the School Board questions the validity 
or accuracy of the physician’s clinician’s physician’s certification for any type of sick leave 
request made by a teacher, or for extended leave or leave requested as a result of 
physical assault or battery made by a bus operator or school employee, the School Board 
may require the employee to be examined by a licensed physician clinician selected by 
the School Board. 
 
Any further review of medical certification shall proceed as follows: 
 
1. Upon review of the physician’s clinician’s certification submitted, if the School 

Board or Superintendent questions the validity or accuracy of the certification, the 
School Board or Superintendent may require the employee, or the immediate 
family member, as applicable, as a condition for taking the applicable sick leave, 
to be examined by a licensed physician clinician selected by the School Board or 
Superintendent.  If the physician clinician finds medical necessity or certifies a 
disability, the leave shall be granted. 

 
2. If the selected physician clinician disagrees with the original medical certification 

from the physician clinician selected by the employee, then the School Board or 
Superintendent may require the employee, or immediate family member, as 
applicable, as a condition for taking the applicable sick leave, to be examined by 
a third licensed physician clinician, whose name appears next in the rotation of 
physicians clinicians on a list established by the local medical society and 
maintained by the School Board or Superintendent.   The final determination of 
medical necessity or certification of a disability shall be based on the opinion of the 
third physician clinician. 

 
3. In the determination of the validity of a physician’s clinician’s certification, the 

opinion of all physician’s clinicians consulted shall be submitted to the School 
Board or Superintendent in the form of a sworn statement.  All information 
contained in any statement from a physician clinician shall be confidential and shall 
not be subject to the public records law. 

 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  7 of 8 

The School Board shall pay all costs of any examinations and tests determined to be 
necessary. 
 
SICK LEAVE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
 
Should any teacher become injured or disabled while acting in his/her official capacity, 
other than by assault, the teacher shall be entitled to appropriate worker's compensation 
benefits and/or sick leave benefits, at the teacher's option, for the period of time while 
injured or disabled.  Any benefits received, however, shall not exceed the total amount of 
the regular salary the teacher was receiving at the time of injury or disability.  The teacher 
shall be required to present a certificate from a physician certifying such injury or 
incapacitation. 
 
VESTING OF SICK LEAVE 
 
All sick leave accumulated by a teacher or school employee, but not a bus operator, shall 
be vested in the teacher or school employee by whom such leave has been accumulated.  
In the event of the transfer of a teacher or school employee from one school system to 
another in Louisiana, or upon the return of such teacher or school employee to the same 
school system within five (5) years or such longer period that may be approved by the 
School Board to which the teacher or school employee returned, regardless of the dates 
on which the leave was accumulated or the date of transfer or return of the teacher or 
school employee, such vested leave which remains unused or for which the teacher or 
school employee has not been compensated directly or transferred such days for 
retirement credit, shall be transferred, returned to, or continued by the School Board and 
shall be retained to the credit of teacher or school employee. 
 
PAYMENT UPON RETIREMENT OR DEATH 
 
Upon the retirement of any employee, or upon the employee entering DROP, or upon the 
employee’s death prior to retirement, the School Board shall pay the employee or his/her 
heirs or assigns, for any unused sick leave, not to exceed twenty-five (25) days.  Such 
pay shall be at the daily rate of pay paid to the employee at the time of his/her retirement 
or death. 
 
DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION PROGRAM (DROP) 
 
Any employee of the City of Baker School Board who participates in the Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (DROP) shall be eligible for and may elect to receive on a 
one-time basis severance pay (accrued sick leave up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) 
days) upon entering DROP on the same basis as any other employee who retires or 
otherwise leaves employment; otherwise, any accrued sick leave shall be paid only upon 
final retirement of the employee. 
 
 
 



FILE:  F-11.4 
Cf:  E-5.3, F-11, F-11.4a 

City of Baker School District  8 of 8 

 
Revised:  August, 2001    Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  January 21, 2003   Revised:  March 3, 2020 
Revised:  September, 2004   Revised:  May 4, 2021 
Revised:  February 3, 2009   Revised:  February 1, 2022 
Revised:  July, 2012    Revised:  December 6, 2022 
Revised:  May 3, 2016    Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§14:125, 17:425, 17:425.1, 17:500, 17:500.1, 17:500.2, 

17:1200, 17:1201, 17:1202, 17:1205, 17:1206, 17:1206.1, 17:1206.2; Board 
minutes, 1-21-03, 2-3-09, 5-3-16, 7-25-18, 3-3-20, 5-4-21, 2-1-22, 12-6-22. 



  FILE:  F-11.4b 
Cf:  F-11.4   

City of Baker School District  1 of 3 

SICK LEAVE BANK  
 
 
The City of Baker School Board recognizes that major illnesses and catastrophic injuries 
may warrant the need for additional sick leave by an employee.  The School Board shall 
create and maintain a Sick Leave Bank which provides an opportunity for employees to 
donate sick leave days, which in turn may be used by employees in emergency situations 
when their own sick leave days have been exhausted. 
 
Donations of sick leave days shall may be made to the Sick Leave Bank and not or directly 
to individual employees,. Three (3) separate accounts shall be established within the Sick 
Leave Bank:  one for teachers, one for bus operators, and one for school employees.  
Donations to the Sick Leave Bank shall be credited to the appropriate account depending 
on the classification of the donor.  Donations made directly to individuals shall only be 
allowed within the appropriate classification.  All donations shall be made by notarized 
Acts of Donation, and shall be made in accordance with other provisions of this policy.  
Once executed, any donation made shall be irrevocable. 
 
Receipt of sick leave days from the Sick Leave Bank shall be based on a written 
application submitted by an employee to the Superintendent and/or his/her designee.  
Assessment and any decisions regarding the granting of days from the Sick Leave Bank 
shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent.   His/her decisions shall be final, and 
such decisions shall not be subject to review by the School Board or subject to the School 
Board's grievance procedures. 
 
ADMINISTRATION OF SICK LEAVE BANK 
 
Donations of sick leave days shall be made directly to the Sick Leave Bank.  Three (3) 
separate accounts shall be established within the Sick Leave Bank:  one for teachers, one 
for bus operators, and one for school employees.  Donations to the Sick Leave Bank shall 
be credited to the appropriate account depending on the classification of the donor. 
 
Applications for receipt of donated sick leave days from the Sick Leave Bank shall be in 
writing and include a statement from a licensed physician certifying a medical necessity for 
the employee to be absent from work.  The application shall be submitted at least twenty 
(20) work days prior to the anticipated beginning date of leave.  In cases of extenuating 
circumstances, the Superintendent may waive or alter the application deadline.  Upon 
review of the applications, if questions about the validity or accuracy of the certification arise, 
the Superintendent may require additional medical certification as outlined under Extended 
Sick Leave in policy GBRIB, Sick Leave. 
 
Medical necessity shall be the result of a catastrophic illness or injury, which means a life-
threatening, chronic, or incapacitating condition of the employee or a member of his/her 
immediate family.  Immediate family member shall mean a spouse, parent, or child of the 



  FILE:  F-11.4b 
Cf:  F-11.4   

City of Baker School District  2 of 3 

employee. 
 
All records generated in the administration of the Sick Leave Bank and direct donations 
to individual employees, as well as the confidentiality of applicable records, shall be 
properly maintained by the Superintendent and staff in accordance with statutory 
provisions. 
 
Donor Eligibility 
 
1.  Employees who wish to donate accrued sick leave days shall have been actively 

employed by the School Board for a period of thirty-six (36) consecutive months as 
of the date of the intended donation. 

 
2.  Only employees with a balance of more than fifty (50) sick leave days as of the date 

of the intended donation shall be permitted to donate to the Sick Leave Bank.  No 
donation shall be permitted which causes the donor’s sick leave balance to fall below 
fifty (50) days.  A maximum of ten (10) days may be donated in a fiscal year.  An 
individual may make only one (1) donation in a fiscal year. 

 
3.  Employees wishing to donate sick leave shall complete the appropriate Act of 

Donation Form.   The donation shall irrevocably relinquish all future claims and rights 
to such donated sick leave.  The days donated shall be permanently deducted from 
the total number of accumulated sick leave days the employee has on the date the 
donation is approved. 

 
4.  All donations shall be strictly voluntary. 
 
5.  No transfer shall become valid until all forms, verifications and signatures have been 

completed and signed by the Superintendent. 
 
6.  All donations shall be in units of whole days. 

7. An employee may donate sick leave directly to another employee in an amount 
not to exceed one-half of the donating employee’s accumulated leave as 
calculated at the beginning of the school year. 

 
Recipient Eligibility 

1.  Recipients shall be actively employed by the School Board at the time that medical 
necessity is determined. 

 
2.  Recipients shall have been employed by the School Board for at least thirty-six (36) 

consecutive months as of the date of the intended usage. 
 



  FILE:  F-11.4b 
Cf:  F-11.4   

City of Baker School District  3 of 3 

3.  Employees who are recipients shall have exhausted all current and accumulated 
sick leave and have used all days of extended sick leave and any other applicable 
leave to which the employee may be entitled.  In addition, those employees who 
receive annual leave shall have exhausted all annual leave time before becoming 
eligible to receive sick leave days from the Sick Leave Bank.   

 
4.  The maximum number of sick leave days that may be granted to a recipient at one 

time shall be twenty (20) work days.   
 
5. Of those days granted, any remaining unused at the end of the fiscal year shall be 

returned to the Sick Leave Bank. 
 
6. A separate application shall be submitted for each occasion that an employee may 

request receipt of sick leave days from the Sick Leave Bank.  Each application shall 
include necessary documentation attesting to medical necessity. The physician’s 
certification must address circumstances relative to each separate request.  The 
separate application requirement may be waived by the Superintendent as 
circumstances may warrant. 

 
7. Donated sick leave shall not be used on an intermittent daily basis. 
 
Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
1.  The Superintendent shall be authorized to make determinations and clarifications of 

these provisions.  All determinations and clarifications made by the Superintendent 
shall be final. 

 
2.  All transactions shall become part of the permanent personnel files of the 

employees.  Act of Donation Forms shall be placed in donor personnel files depicting 
the actual number of days deducted from accrued sick leave days on file after the 
donation is made. 

 
3. The number of days withdrawn from the Sick Leave Bank shall not exceed the 

number of days available within the appropriate account of the Bank. 
 
4. At least ninety percent (90%) of the leave balance shall be retained in each 

account of the bank from one school year to the next.  
 
New policy:  May 3, 2016 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:81, 17:500.2, 17:1202, 17:1205, 17:1206.2; La. Civil 

Code, Art. 1541, 1542, 1833; Board minutes, 5-3-16. 



FILE:  H-3.5b 
Cf:  F-12.3   

City of Baker School District                                                                                                    

CORPORAL PUNISHMENT 
 
 
Every teacher is authorized to hold every pupil to a strict accountability for any disorderly 
conduct in school or on the playground of the school, or on any school bus going to or 
returning from school, or during intermission or recess.   
 
Corporal punishment shall not be allowed in the City of Baker School System. 
 
In accordance with Louisiana statutory provisions, corporal punishment means using 
physical force to discipline a student, with or without an object.  Corporal punishment 
includes hitting, paddling, striking, spanking, slapping, or any other physical force that 
causes pain or physical discomfort. Taping a student’s mouth shut or otherwise restricting 
his or her airway in any manner is prohibited. 
 

Corporal punishment does not include: 
 

1. The use of reasonable and necessary physical restraint of a student to 
protect the student, or others, from bodily harm or to obtain possession of a 
weapon or other dangerous object from a student. 

 

2. The use of seclusion and restraint as provided in La. Rev. Stat. Ann.  
§17:416.21. 

 
Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting an employee from using 
physical force, reasonable and appropriate under the circumstances, in defending 
himself/herself against a physical attack by a student or to restrain a student from 
attacking another student or employee, or to prevent acts of misconduct which are so 
anti-social or disruptive in nature as to shock the conscience. 
 
Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: US Constitution, Amend. XIII; US Constitution, Amend. XIV §1; Ingraham v. 

Wright, 97 S. Ct. 1401, (1977); Baker v. Owen, 96 S. Ct. 210 affirming 395 F. Supp. 
294 (M.D.N.C., 1975); La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:81.6, 17:223, 17:416, 17:416.1; 
Board minutes, 7-25-18. 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    1 of 7 

STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES 
 
 
HEALTH CARE CENTERS 
 
In order to provide adequate health care and services to students, the City of Baker 
School Board may authorize the establishment of student health care centers in the 
schools of the parish.  Any health clinic established shall be supervised by a school nurse, 
who shall be licensed in accordance with state law.  Health care centers shall provide 
services which include, but are not limited to the following:  treatment of minor illness and 
injury, routine physical examinations, immunizations, referrals to alcohol and drug abuse 
prevention program counselors, and mental health services.  No student shall receive any 
type of service unless the required standardized school health forms as outlined in Health 
and Safety, Bulletin 135, Louisiana Department of Education, have been signed, returned 
to school, and have been filed in the clinic. 
 
HEARING AND VISION SCREENING 
 
The School Board, during the first semester of the school year, or within thirty (30) days 
after the admission of students entering school late in the session, shall test the sight, 
including color screening for all first grade students, and hearing of students according to 
the schedule outlined by the American Academy of Pediatrics, except those students 
whose parents or guardians may object to such tests.  Students may also be tested upon 
referral or requests of teachers and/or parents. 
 
A record of such examination shall be kept and the administrators shall be required to 
follow up on the deficiencies within sixty (60) days, and shall notify in writing the parent 
or tutor of every student found to have any defect of sight or hearing. 
 
EDUCATIONAL SCREENING AND EVALUATION 
 
Every student in grades kindergarten through third shall be screened, at least once, for 
the existence of impediments to a successful school experience.  No student shall be 
screened if his/her parent or guardian objects to such screening.  Such impediments shall 
include: 
 

1. dyslexia and related disorders; 
2. attention deficit disorder; and 
3. social and environmental factors that put a student "at risk." 

 
Students in need of services and/or assistance shall have it provided to them. The 
screenings shall be done directly by elementary school counselors, pupil appraisal 
personnel, teachers, or any other professional employees of the School Board who have 
been appropriately trained, all of whom shall operate as advocates for the students 
identified as needing services or assistance.  No screenings shall be done by persons 
who have not been trained to do such screenings. 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    2 of 7 

The School Board shall ensure that educational screening activities, conducted by a 
committee at the school level, shall be completed before a student is referred for an 
individual evaluation through pupil appraisal services. 
 
Students who are experiencing learning or adjustment difficulties in a regular program, 
but are not thought to be exceptional, may receive support services from pupil appraisal 
by a referral from a committee at the school level. 
 
Testing for Dyslexia 
  
A dyslexia screener selected by the Louisiana Department of Education shall be 
administered to each student in the second half of kindergarten, or upon the request of a 
teacher or parent or legal guardian student, school nurse, classroom teacher, or other 
school personnel who has reason to believe that a student has a need to be tested for 
dyslexia and related disorders, that student shall be referred to the school building level 
committee for additional testing. The School Board shall provide remediation for students 
with dyslexia or related disorders in an appropriate education program. 
 
For purposes of this policy, dyslexia shall be defined as an unexpected difficulty in reading 
for an individual who has the intelligence to be a much better reader, most commonly 
caused by a difficulty in phonological processing, which affects the ability of an 
individual to speak, read, and spell.  Phonological processing means the appreciation of 
the individual sounds of spoken and written language. 
 
OTHER HEALTH CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The School Board acknowledges that only properly trained personnel shall make 
recommendations regarding certain health issues of students. 
 
The School Board shall prohibit, in accordance with statutory provisions, any teacher 
employed by the School Board from recommending that a student be administered a 
psychotropic drug, specifying or identifying any specific mental health diagnosis for a 
student, or using a parent's or guardian's refusal to consent to the administration of a 
psychotropic drug to a student or to a psychiatric evaluation, screening, or examination 
of a student as grounds for prohibiting the student from attending any class or participating 
in any school-related activity or as the sole basis of accusations of child abuse or neglect 
against the parent or guardian. 
 
The provisions of the above paragraph shall not be construed so as to prohibit any of the 
following: 
 

1.  An employee of the School Board who is a registered nurse, nurse 
practitioner, physician, or an appropriately credentialed mental health 
professional or teacher from recommending that a student be evaluated by 
an appropriate medical practitioner. 

 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    3 of 7 

2.  A teacher or other certified employee of the School Board from suggesting 
a student be assessed or evaluated by qualified employees of the School 
Board who perform such function. 

 
3.  A teacher assessing or evaluating any element of a student's academic 

readiness, performance, or achievement. 
 
4.  Any employee of the School Board from discussing any aspect of a 

student's behavior or academic progress with the student's parent or 
guardian or any other employee of the School Board. 

 
Definitions 
 
Psychotropic drug shall mean a substance that is used in the diagnosis, treatment, or 
prevention of a disease or as a component of a medication and is intended to have an 
altering effect on perception, emotion, or behavior. 
 
Teacher, for purposes of this section of the policy, shall mean any person employed by 
the School Board, who, as a condition of employment, is required to hold a valid teaching 
certificate issued by the Louisiana Department of Education and any person employed by 
the School Board as a substitute teacher. 
 
SEIZURE TREATMENT AND TRAINING 
 
The parent or guardian of a student with a seizure disorder may submit to the 
administration of the student's school a seizure management and treatment plan 
developed by the student's parent and treating physician for review and use by school 
employees with whom the student has regular interaction.  The plan shall include the 
following: 
 

1. The health care services the student may receive at school or while 
participating in a school activity. 
  

2. Evaluation of the student's ability to manage and understand his/her seizure 
disorder. 

   
3.  Signatures from the student's parent or guardian and from the treating 

physician. 
 
School nurses and such school employees and school bus operators who have regular 
interactions with a student for whom there is a seizure management and treatment plan 
shall be required to biennially successfully complete instruction provided by the 
Department of Education. 
 
 
 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    4 of 7 

ADMINISTERING CATHETERS 
 
The School Board shall not require any employee other than a registered nurse or a 
licensed medical physician to catheterize any student until all of the following conditions 
have been met: 
 
 1. A registered nurse or licensed medical physician, employed by the School 

Board, has assessed the health status of the specific child in his/her specific 
educational setting.  The registered nurse has determined that the 
procedure could be safely performed, the results are predictable and could 
be delegated to someone other than a registered nurse following 
documented training. 

 
 2. The registered nurse or licensed medical physician shall train at least two 

(2) employees to catheterize the specific child in his/her educational setting.  
The employees shall be given not less than eight (8) hours of training in the 
area of catheterization of students. 

 
 3. Following the training provided for in #2, no catheterization may be 

performed unless prescribed in writing by a licensed medical physician.  The 
employee, other than the registered nurse or licensed medical physician, 
shall be required to complete, under the direct supervision of a registered 
nurse, a minimum of five (5) catheterizations.  Upon one hundred percent 
successful completion of these catheterizations, the registered nurse or 
licensed medical physician and the trainee shall sign a standard form 
indicating that the trainee has attained the prescribed level of competency.  
A copy of this form shall be kept on file by the school system. 

 
4. Individuals who are required to perform catheterizations and have been 

trained according to statutory provisions, may not decline to perform such 
service except as exempted by a licensed medical physician or a registered 
nurse.  The reasons for such exemption shall be documented and certified 
by the licensed medical physician or a registered nurse within seventy-two 
(72) hours. 

 
 5. Any employee shall have the right to request that another School Board 

employee be present while catheterizing the student, to serve as a witness 
to the procedure.  After making such a request, the employee shall not be 
required to catheterize a student without such a witness. 

 
The provisions of this part of the policy shall be restricted to those students who have had 
intermittent catheterization prescribed as a treatment for urinary or neurologic dysfunction 
and not for continuous bladder drainage or to obtain urine specimens for diagnostic 
purposes.  No employee shall be requested to catheterize any student for continuous 
bladder drainage or to obtain urine specimens for diagnostic purposes. 
 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    5 of 7 

PERFORMING NONCOMPLEX HEALTH PROCEDURES 
 
The term noncomplex health procedure shall mean a task which is safely performed 
according to exact directions, with no need to alter the standard procedure, and which 
yields predictable results.  It shall include the following: 
 
 1. Modified activities of daily living which require special instruction such as 

toileting/diapering, bowel/bladder training, toilet training, oral/dental 
hygiene, lifting/positioning, and oral feeding. 

 
 2. Health maintenance procedures such as postural drainage, percussion, 

tracheostomy suctioning, gastrostomy feeding and monitoring of these 
procedures. 

 
 3. Screenings such as growth, vital signs, hearing, vision, and scoliosis. 
 
No noncomplex health procedure, except screenings and activities of daily living such as 
toileting/diapering, toilet training, oral/dental hygiene, oral feeding, lifting, and positioning 
may be performed unless prescribed in writing by a physician licensed to practice 
medicine in the state of Louisiana or any other state of the United States. 
 
The School Board shall not require any employee other than a registered nurse, licensed 
medical physician, an appropriate licensed health professional, or, in the case of 
tracheostomy suctioning procedure, any hired and trained unlicensed nursing personnel 
or unlicensed assistive personnel as defined by the Louisiana State Board of Nursing, to 
perform noncomplex health procedures until all the following conditions have been met: 
 
 1. A registered nurse or a licensed medical physician and, when appropriate, 

another licensed health professional employed by the School Board, has 
assessed the health status of the specific child in his/her specific 
educational setting and has determined that, according to the legal 
standards of the respective licensed health professional performing such 
procedure, the procedure can be safely performed, the results are 
predictable, and the procedure can be delegated to someone other than a 
licensed health professional following documented training. 

 
 2. The registered nurse or the licensed medical physician and, when 

appropriate, another licensed health professional shall train, in his or her 
area of expertise, at least two (2) such employees to perform noncomplex 
health procedures on the specific child in his/her educational setting.  The 
employees shall be given not less than four (4) hours of training in the area 
of noncomplex health procedures. 

 
 3. Following the training provided for in #2, no noncomplex health procedure, 

except screenings and activities of daily living such as toileting/diapering, 
toilet training, oral/dental hygiene, oral feeding, lifting, and positioning may 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    6 of 7 

be performed unless prescribed in writing by a physician licensed to practice 
medicine in the state of Louisiana or an adjacent state. 

 
  The employee, other than the registered nurse, licensed medical physician, 

or appropriate licensed health professional shall be required to complete, 
under the direct supervision or coordination of a registered nurse, a 
minimum of three (3) satisfactory demonstrations.  Upon satisfactory 
completion of these noncomplex health procedures, the registered nurse, 
licensed medical physician, or appropriate licensed health professional and 
the trainee shall sign a standard form indicating that the trainee has attained 
the prescribed level of competency.  A copy of this form shall be kept on file 
by the school system. 

 
 4. Individuals who are required to perform noncomplex health procedures and 

have been trained according to the provisions of state law and this policy 
may not decline to perform such service at the time indicated except as 
exempted for reasons as noted by the licensed medical physician or 
registered nurse.  The reasons for such exemption shall be documented 
and certified by the licensed medical physician or a registered nurse within 
seventy-two (72) hours. 

 
5. An employee shall have the right to request that another School Board 

employee be present while he/she is performing noncomplex health 
procedures for a student, to serve as a witness to the procedure.  After 
making such a request, the employee shall not be required to perform 
noncomplex health procedures without such a witness. 

 
6.  Employees who have volunteered to perform a tracheostomy suctioning 

procedure and who comply with the training and demonstration 
requirements outlined in #2 and #3 above may be allowed to perform such 
procedure on a child in an educational setting. 

 
The School Board shall provide the necessary safety equipment, materials, and supplies 
to each employee who performs noncomplex health procedures.  Such safety equipment, 
materials, and supplies shall include but not be limited to gloves, anti-bacterial soaps and 
wipes, paper towels and masks. 
 
For the purposes of this section of the policy, employee means any appropriate member 
of the education staff, and appropriate licensed health professional shall include a 
licensed practical nurse. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FILE:  H-3.6 

City of Baker School District                                                                                    7 of 7 

Revised:  August, 2003    Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  November 7, 2006   Revised:  November 18, 2020 
Revised:  September 1, 2009   Revised:  December 6, 2022 
Revised:  May, 2013    Revised:  October, 2023 
Revised:  May 3, 2016    Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§14:403, 17:170, 17:392.1, 17:435, 17:436, 17:436.2, 

17:436.4, 17:2112, 40:31.3; Irving Independent School District v. Tatro, 104 S. Ct. 
33371 (1984); Health and Safety, Bulletin 135, Louisiana Department of Education; 
Board minutes, 11-7-06, 9-2-09, 5-3-16, 7-25-18, 11-18-20, 12-6-22. 



FILE:  H-3.6b 
Cf:  H-2.3 

City of Baker School Board                                                                                        1 of 2 

IMMUNIZATIONS 
 
 
The City of Baker School Board shall require each student entering any school for the 
first time, and at any other time as required by the state, to present satisfactory evidence 
of immunity to or immunization against vaccine-preventable diseases according to state 
law and a schedule approved by the state Department of Health and Hospitals (DHH), 
Office of Public Health (OPH), or present evidence of an immunization program in 
progress.  The School Board may require immunizations or proof of immunity more 
extensive than required by the Department of Health and Hospitals (DHH), Office of 
Public Health (OPH).  Any student failing to meet the immunization standards shall be 
prohibited from attending school until such time as the immunization standards are met. 
 
In progress shall mean that the student has an immunization due after the date school 
has begun, because the student began his/her immunization late, or because the 
student’s pediatrician has provided written orders for the student to receive an 
immunization after a certain date. 
 
TRANSFERRING STUDENTS 
 
A student transferring from another school system in or out of the state shall submit either 
a certificate of immunization or a letter from his/her personal physician or a public health 
clinic indicating immunization against the diseases in the schedule approved by the Office 
of Public Health have been performed, or a statement that such immunizations are in 
progress. 
 
If booster injections for the diseases enumerated on the state schedule are advised, such 
booster injections shall be administered before the student enters a school system within 
the state. 
 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
Principals or their designated representatives shall be responsible for checking students' 
records to see that the provisions of this policy are enforced, and to electronically transmit 
immunization reports to the OPH through the Louisiana Immunization Network for Kids 
Statewide, when capable. 
 
EXCEPTIONS 
 
No student seeking to enter any public school in the City of Baker shall be required to 
comply with the provisions of this written policy if the student or his/her parent or guardian 
submits either a written statement from a physician stating that this procedure is 
contraindicated for medical reasons, or a written dissent from the student or his/her 
parents. 
 



FILE:  H-3.6b 
Cf:  H-2.3 

City of Baker School Board                                                                                        2 of 2 

Exception in compliance may also apply to any person who is unable to comply due to a 
shortage in the supply of available vaccinations. 
 
No teacher or school employee or administrator shall distinguish between students based 
on whether a student has or has not received vaccines from the schedules provided for 
in this policy. Actions prohibited include but are not limited to discrimination based on a 
student's vaccination status in any of the following acts:  
 

1. Determination of eligibility for athletics or other extracurricular activity.  
2. Allowing or denying participation inside and outside of the classroom.  
3. Issuance of surveys to students relative to vaccination status.  
4. Organizing seating arrangements.  

 
EXCLUSION FROM ATTENDANCE 
 
If an outbreak of a vaccine-preventable disease occurs, upon the recommendation of the 
state Office of Public Health, school administrators may exclude from attendance 
unimmunized students until the appropriate disease incubation period has expired, or the 
unimmunized person presents evidence of immunization. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no student shall be required 
to receive a COVID-19 vaccine as a condition of initial enrollment or continuing 
attendance at any school in the City of Baker School District. 
 
 
Approved:  May 19, 2009 
Revised:  March 3, 2020 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:170, 17:170.1, 17:170.2, 17:170.3, 17:170.4; Health and 

Safety, Bulletin 135, Louisiana Department of Education; Board minutes, 5-19-09, 
3-3-20. 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  1 of 13 

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION 
 
 
It is the policy of the City of Baker School Board that the administration of medication to 
students at school shall meet the following conditions and limitations.  As used in this 
policy, the term medication shall include all prescription and non-prescription drugs. 
 
1. WRITTEN ORDERS, APPROPRIATE CONTAINERS, LABELS, AND 

INFORMATION 
 
 A. Medication shall not be administered to any student without a completed 

Medication Order from a physician or dentist licensed to practice medicine 
in the state of Louisiana or an adjacent any other state of the United States, 
or any other authorized prescriber authorized in the state of Louisiana or 
any other state of the United States to prescribe medication or devices, and 
a letter of request and authorization from the student's parent or guardian.  
The following information shall be included: 

 
  1) the student's name 
  2) the name and signature of the physician/dentist/other authorized 

prescriber 
  3) physician's/dentist's/other authorized prescriber's business address, 

office phone number, and emergency phone numbers 
  4) relevant diagnosis 

5) name, amount of each school dose, time of school administration, 
route of medication, and reason for use of medication 

  6) a written statement of the desired effects and the child specific 
potential adverse effects 

 
 B. Medication shall be provided to the school by the parent/legal guardian in 

the container that meets acceptable pharmaceutical standards and shall 
include the following information: 

 
  1) name of pharmacy 
  2) address and telephone number of pharmacy 
  3) prescription number 
  4) date dispensed 
  5) name of student 
  6) clear directions for use, including the route, frequency, and other as 

indicated 
  7) drug name and strength 
 8) last name and initial of pharmacist 
  9) cautionary auxiliary labels, if applicable 
   10) physician's/dentist's/other authorized prescriber's name 
 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  2 of 13 

Labels of prepackaged medications, when dispensed, shall contain the 
following information in addition to the regular pharmacy label: 

  1) drug name 
  2) dosage form 
  3) strength 
  4) quantity 
  5) name of manufacturer and/or distributor 
  6) manufacturer's lot or batch number 
 
2. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 A. Once trained, the school employee who administers medication may not 

decline to perform such service at the time indicated, unless exempted in 
writing by the MD or RN. 

 
 B. During the period when the medication is administered the person 

administering medication must be relieved of all other duties.  This 
requirement does not include the observation period required in 2.-F below. 

 
 C. Except in the case of a trained unlicensed diabetes care assistant 

administering diabetes medications (if applicable) or in life-threatening 
situations, trained unlicensed school personnel may not administer 
injectable medications. 

 
 D. All medications must be stored in a secured locked area or locked drawer 

with limited access except by authorized trained school personnel. 
 
 E. Only oral, inhalant, topical ointment for diaper rash, and emergency 

medications may be administered at school by unlicensed, but trained, 
school personnel.  Under special circumstances, other medications not 
mentioned above may be administered as necessary, as approved by the 
school nurse. 

 
 F. Each student must be observed by a school employee for a period of 45 

minutes following the administration of medication.  This observation may 
occur during instruction time. 

 
 G. School medication orders shall be limited to medication which cannot be 

administered before or after school hours. 
 
3. PRINCIPAL 
 

The principal shall designate at least two (2) employees to receive training and 
administer medications in each school. 

 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  3 of 13 

4. TEACHER 
 

The classroom teacher who is not otherwise previously contractually required shall 
not be assigned to administer medications to students.  A teacher may request in 
writing to volunteer to administer medications to his/her own students.  The 
administration of medications shall not be a condition of employment of teachers 
employed subsequent to July 1, 1994.  A regular education teacher who is 
assigned an exceptional child shall not be required to administer medications. 

 
5. SCHOOL NURSE 
 
 A. The school nurse, in collaboration with the principal, shall supervise the 

implementation of the school policies for the administration of medications 
in schools to ensure the safety, health and welfare of the students. 

 
 B. The school nurse shall be responsible for the training of non-medical 

personnel who have been designated by each principal to administer 
medications in each school.  The training must be at least six (6) hours and 
include but not be limited to the following provisions: 

 
  1) Proper procedures for administration of medications including 

controlled substances 
  2) Storage and disposal of medications 
  3) Appropriate and correct record keeping 
  4) Appropriate actions when unusual circumstances or medication 

reactions occur 
  5) Appropriate use or resources 
 
6. PARENT/LEGAL GUARDIAN 
 
 A. The parent/legal guardian who wishes medication administered to his/her 

child shall provide the following: 
 
  1) A letter of request and authorization that contains the following 

information: 
 
   a. the student's name; 
   b. clear instructions for school administration; 
   c. prescription number, if any; 
   d. current date; 
   e. relevant diagnosis; 
   f. name, amount of each school dose, time of school 

administration, route of medication, and reason for use of 
medication; 

   g. physician's/dentist's/other authorized prescriber's name; 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  4 of 13 

   h. the parent's/legal guardian's printed name and signature; 
   i. parent's/legal guardian's emergency phone number; 
   j. statement granting or withholding release of medical 

information; 
 
  2) A written order for each medication to be given at school, including 

annual renewals at the beginning of the school year.  The new orders 
dated before July of that school year shall not be accepted.  No 
corrections shall be accepted on the physician's Medication Order 
form.  Alteration of this form in any way or falsification of the signature 
is grounds for prosecution.  Orders for multiple medications on the 
same form, an incomplete form, or a form with a 
physician's/dentist's/other authorized prescriber's stamp shall not be 
accepted.  Faxed orders may be accepted; original orders must be 
received within five (5) business days. 

 
  3) A prescription for all medications to be administered at school, 

including medications that might ordinarily be available over-the-
counter.  Only the physician/dentist/other authorized prescriber or 
his/her staff may write on the Medication Order form.  This form must 
be signed by the physician/dentist/other authorized prescriber. 

 
  4) A list of all medications that the student is currently receiving at home 

and school, if that listing is not a violation of confidentiality or contrary 
to the request of the parent/legal guardian or student. 

 
  5) A list of names and telephone numbers of persons to be notified in 

case of medication emergency in addition to the parent/legal 
guardian and licensed physician/dentist/other authorized prescriber. 

 
  6) Arrangements for the safe delivery of the medication to and from 

school in the properly labeled container as dispensed by the 
pharmacist; the medication must be delivered by a responsible adult.  
The parent/ legal guardian will need to get two (2) containers for each 
prescription from the pharmacist in order that the parent/legal 
guardian, as well as the school, will have a properly labeled 
container.  If the medication is not properly labeled and does not 
match the physician's order exactly, it will not be given. 

 
 B. All aerosol medications shall be delivered to the school in pre-measured 

dosage. 
 
 C. Provide no more than a thirty-five (35) school day supply of medication in a 

properly labeled container to be kept at school. 
 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  5 of 13 

 D. The initial dose of a medication shall be administered by the student's 
parent/legal guardian outside the school jurisdiction with sufficient time for 
observation for adverse reactions. 

 
 E. The parent/legal guardian shall work with those personnel designated to 

administer medication as follows: 
 
  1) Cooperate in counting the medication with the designated school 

personnel who receives it and sign the Drug Receipt form. 
 
  2) Cooperate with school staff to provide for safe, appropriate 

administration of medications to students, such as positioning, and 
suggestions for liquids or foods to be given with the medication. 

 
  3) Assist in the development of the emergency plan for each student. 
 
  4) Comply with written and verbal communication regarding school 

policies. 
 
  5) Grant permission for school nurse/physician/ dentist/other 

authorized prescriber consultation. 
 
  6) Remove or give permission to destroy unused, contaminated, 

discontinued, or out-of-date medications according to the school 
guidelines. 

 
7. STUDENT SELF-MEDICATION 
 
 Only those medical conditions which require immediate access to medications to 

prevent a life threatening or potentially debilitating situation shall be considered for 
self-administration of medication.  Compliance with the school policy for a drug-
free zone shall also be met if possible. 

 
Asthma, Diabetes, or the Use of Auto-Injectable Epinephrine 

 
 Self-administration of medications by a student with asthma or diabetes or the use 

of auto-injectable epinephrine by a student at risk of anaphylaxis shall be permitted 
by the School Board, provided the student’s parent or other legal guardian provides 
the school in which the student is enrolled with the following documentation: 

 
A. Written authorization for the student to carry and self-administer such 

prescribed medications. 
 
B. Written certification from a licensed medical physician or other authorized 

prescriber that the student: 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  6 of 13 

 1) has asthma, diabetes, or is at risk of having anaphylaxis 
 

2) has received instruction in the proper method of self-administration 
of the student’s prescribed medications to treat asthma, diabetes, or 
anaphylaxis 

 
C. A written treatment plan from the student’s licensed physician or authorized 

prescriber for managing asthma, diabetes, or anaphylactic episodes.  The 
treatment plan shall be signed by the student, the student’s parent or other 
legal guardian, and the student’s physician or other authorized prescriber.  
The treatment plan shall contain the following information: 

 
1) The name, purpose, and prescribed dosage of the medications to be 

self-administered. 
 
2) The time or times the medications are to be regularly administered 

and under what additional special circumstances the medications are 
to be administered. 

 
3) The length of time for which the medications are prescribed. 

 
D. Any other documentation required by the School Board. 

 
The required documentation shall be maintained in the office of the school nurse 
or other designated school official. 

 
The School Board shall inform the parent or other legal guardian of the student in 
writing that the school and its employees shall incur no liability as a result of any 
injury sustained by the student from the self-administration of medications used to 
treat asthma, diabetes, or anaphylaxis.  The parent or other legal guardian of the 
student shall sign a statement acknowledging that the school shall incur no liability 
and that the parent or other legal guardian shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
school and its employees against any claims that may arise relating to the self-
administration of medications used to treat asthma, diabetes, or anaphylaxis. 

 
A student who has been granted permission to self-administer medication by the 
School Board shall be allowed to carry and store with the school nurse or other 
designated school official an inhaler, auto-injectable epinephrine, or insulin, at all 
times. 
 
Permission for the self-administration of asthma or diabetes medications or use of 
auto-injectable epinephrine by a student shall be effective only for the school year 
in which permission is granted.  Permission for self-administration of asthma or 
diabetes medications or the use of auto-injectable epinephrine by a student shall 
be granted by the School Board each subsequent school year, provided all of the 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  7 of 13 

requirements of this part of the policy are fulfilled. 
 
Upon obtaining permission to self-administer asthma or diabetes medication or to 
use auto-injectable epinephrine, a student shall be permitted to possess and self-
administer such prescribed medication at any time while on school property or 
while attending a school sponsored activity.  A student who uses any medication 
permitted by this policy in a manner other than as prescribed shall be subject to 
disciplinary action; however, such disciplinary action shall not limit or restrict such 
student’s immediate access to such prescribed medication. 

 
Auto-injectable epinephrine means a medical device for the immediate self-
administration of epinephrine by a person at risk for anaphylaxis. 
 
Glucagon means a hormone that raises the level of glucose in the blood.  
Glucagon, given by injection is used to treat severe hypoglycemia. 
 
Inhaler means a medical device that delivers a metered dose of medication to 
alleviate the symptoms of asthma. 
 
Insulin Pen means a pen-like device used to put insulin into the body. 
 
Insulin Pump means a computerized device that is programmed to deliver small, 
steady, doses of insulin. 

 
Other Permitted Medications 

 
Self-administration of other medications by a student may be permitted by the 
School Board, provided that: 

 
 A. Medication Order from the physician or authorized prescriber and from the 

student's parent or guardian shall be on file and communication with the 
prescriber has been established. 

 
B. The school nurse has evaluated the situation and deemed it to be safe and 

appropriate, and has developed a medical administration plan for general 
supervision.  The administration plan may include observation of the 
procedure, student health counseling and health instruction regarding the 
principles of self-care. 

 
 C. The principal and appropriate staff are informed that the student is self-

administering the prescribed medication. 
 
 D. The medication is handled in a safe, appropriate manner. 
 
 E. The school principal and the school employed registered nurse determine 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  8 of 13 

a safe place for storing the medication. 
 

The medication must be accessible if the student's health needs require it; 
this information is included in the medication administration plan. 

 
 F. Some medication should have a backup supply readily available. 
 
 G. The student records the medication administration and reports unusual 

circumstances (as a general rule the student must record all dates and 
times he/she is self-medicating during school hours.  The medication log 
shall be kept in the main office where the student shall record this 
information unless otherwise noted on the student's Individual 
Administration Plan). 

 
 H. The school employed registered nurse, and/or the designated employee 

monitors the student. 
 
8. ACCEPTABLE SCHOOL MEDICATIONS 
 

School medication orders shall be limited to medication which cannot be 
administered before or after school hours.  Parents may come to school and 
administer medication to their children at any time during the school day. 

 
Medications which may be considered as acceptable under this policy: 

 
A. Medication to modify behavior (e.g., Ritalin, when the sustained action form 

of this medication is not effective.) 
 
B. Severe allergic reactions - must have specific written instructions from a 

physician. 
 
C. Anticonvulsive medication. 
 
D. Medication for asthma or diabetes. 
 
E. Medication given in extenuating circumstances. 
 
F. Non-prescription (over-the-counter) drugs will only be given if medical 

certification of extenuating circumstances and prescription is obtained. 
 
G. Antibiotics and other short-term medications will not be given at school, 

unless so ordered by a physician, dentist, or authorized prescriber. 
 
H. The school nurse or trained school employee shall have the authority to 

administer auto-injectable epinephrine, as defined elsewhere in this policy, 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  9 of 13 

to a student who the school nurse or trained school employee believes is 
having an anaphylactic reaction, whether or not the student has a 
prescription for epinephrine.  At least one employee at each school shall 
receive training from a registered nurse or licensed medical physician in the 
administration of epinephrine. 

 
I. Other specific illnesses that require medication. 
 

J.         The school nurse shall have the authority to maintain a supply of naloxone 
or other opioid antagonists, and per La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §17:436.1(M).  The 
school nurse or trained school personnel may administer it naloxone or 
other opioid antagonists to any student or other person on school grounds 
in the event of an actual or perceived opioid emergency.   

 
  A school employee who has received at least six (6) hours of general 

training for medication administration from a registered nurse or a licensed 
medical physician that includes the emergency administration of 
naloxone, shall also be authorized to administer naloxone to any student 
or other person on school grounds in the event of an actual or perceived 
opioid emergency. 

 
Trained school personnel means a school employee or volunteer who has 
received the training on life-saving medication that addresses techniques 
on how to recognize signs of a life-threatening emergency, standards and 
procedures for the storage and administration of the medication, and 
emergency follow-up procedures, including the requirement to summon 
emergency services either immediately before or immediately after 
administering the medication.  

 
9. DIABETES 

 
Each student with diabetes who seeks care for his/her diabetes while at school or 
while participating in a school-related activity shall submit a diabetes management 
and treatment plan on an annual basis.  Such plan shall be developed by a 
physician licensed in the state of Louisiana or an adjacent any other state of the 
United States, or any other authorized prescriber authorized in the state of 
Louisiana or any other state of the United States who is selected by the parent or 
legal guardian to be responsible for such student’s diabetes treatment. School-
related activities include, but are not limited to, extracurricular activities and sports. 

 
A student’s diabetes management and treatment plan shall be kept on file in the 
school in which the student is enrolled and shall contain: 

 
A. A detailed evaluation of the student’s level of understanding of his/her 

condition and his/her ability to manage his/her diabetes. 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  10 of 13 

B. The diabetes-related healthcare services the student may receive or self-
administer at school or during a school-related activity. 

 
C. A timetable, including dosage instructions, of any diabetes medications to 

be administered to the student or self-administered by the student. 
 
D. The signature of the student (if age appropriate), the student’s parent or 

legal guardian, and the physician or other authorized health care prescriber 
responsible for the student’s diabetes treatment. 

 
The parent or legal guardian of a student with diabetes shall annually submit a 
copy of the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan to the principal or 
appropriately designated school personnel of the school where the student is 
enrolled.  The plan shall be reviewed by appropriate school personnel either prior 
to or within five (5) days after the beginning of each school year, or upon enrollment 
if the student enrolls after the beginning of the school year or as soon as 
practicable following the student being diagnosed with diabetes, or as warranted 
by changes in the student’s medical condition. 
 
Upon receipt of the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan, the school 
nurse shall conduct a nursing assessment of the student’s condition and develop 
an Individualized Healthcare Plan (IHP).  The school nurse shall be given not less 
than five (5) school days to develop the IHP and shall implement the IHP within 
ten (10) school days of receipt of the diabetes treatment plan.  The school nurse 
must assess the stability of the student’s diabetes both at home and in the school 
setting prior to the development of the IHP for care in the school setting. 

 
The parent or legal guardian shall be responsible for all care related to the 
student’s diabetes management and treatment plan until the IHP is developed, the 
parents or legal guardian have agreed to and signed the IHP, and the diabetes 
management and treatment plan is put into place by the school nurse. 
 
The School Board may utilize an unlicensed diabetes care assistant to provide 
appropriate care to a diabetic student, or assist a student with self-care of his/her 
diabetes, in accordance with the student’s diabetes management and treatment 
plan, the student’s IHP, and regulations contained in Health and Safety, Bulletin 
135.  An unlicensed diabetes care assistant is defined as a school employee who 
is not a healthcare professional, who is willing to complete training requirements 
established by BESE, and is determined competent by the school nurse to provide 
care and treatment to students with diabetes.  An unlicensed diabetes care 
assistant also means an employee of an entity that contracts with the school or 
school system to provide school nurses who are responsible for providing health 
care services required by law or the Department of Education. 
 
In accordance with the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan, the 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  11 of 13 

student shall be permitted to self-manage his/her diabetes care as outlined in the 
student’s management and treatment plan. 
 
With written permission of a student’s parent or legal guardian, a school may 
provide a school employee with responsibility for providing transportation for a 
student with diabetes, or supervising a student with diabetes with an off-campus 
activity.  An information sheet with pertinent information about the student’s 
condition and contact information in cases of emergency shall be provided the 
employee. 

 
10. CLASSROOM STORAGE AND ADMINISTRATION OF AUTO-INJECTABLE 

EPINEPHRINE BY TEACHERS  
 

The School Board shall allow a supply of auto-injectable epinephrine, as defined 
above, to be maintained in a secure location in each classroom assigned to a student 
who is deemed by his/her physician to be at high risk for anaphylactic reaction and 
incapable of self-administration of auto-injectable epinephrine. 

 
The student's parent or other legal guardian shall annually provide the school in 
which the student is enrolled with all of the following: 

 
A. The supply of auto-injectable epinephrine to be kept in each classroom. 
 
B. Written authorization for the student to be administered the medication. 

 
C. Written certification from the student's licensed medical physician or other 

authorized prescriber that the student is at high risk of having anaphylaxis 
and is not capable of self-administration of auto-injectable epinephrine. 

 
D. A written treatment plan, as defined above from the student's licensed 

medical physician or other authorized prescriber for managing anaphylactic 
episodes. 

 
The required documentation required shall be kept on file in the office of the school 
nurse or other designated school official. 
 
The teacher in each classroom where auto-injectable epinephrine is stored shall 
be provided information regarding accessing and administering auto-injectable 
epinephrine, the signs and symptoms of anaphylactic reactions and specific 
information regarding condition, care, and treatment of the student assigned to the 
classroom who is at high risk of anaphylactic reaction. 
 
The School Board shall inform the parent or other legal guardian of the student in 
writing that the school and its employees shall incur no liability as a result of any injury 
sustained by the student from the good faith administration of auto-injectable 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  12 of 13 

epinephrine.  The parent or other legal guardian of the student shall sign a 
statement acknowledging that the school shall incur no liability and that the parent 
or other legal guardian shall indemnify and hold harmless the school and its 
employees against any claims that may arise relating to the good faith 
administration of auto-injectable epinephrine. 
 
This information shall be included in the student handbook of each school and 
posted on each school’s website.  Such policy shall also be disclosed to any parent 
or other legal guardian who notifies the school in which the student is enrolled, in 
writing, that the student has a condition which puts him at risk of anaphylaxis. 
 

11. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION ON FIELD TRIPS AND OTHER EXTRA-
CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 

 
If a student with an identified medical need is to attend a field trip or other school-
sponsored activity, the parents shall be notified to ascertain if any medication must 
be administered on the field trip or school-sponsored activity away from school.  If 
so, the parent/legal guardian shall accompany the student to the activity to 
administer any medication. 
 
If the parent/legal guardian cannot attend the field trip/activity with his/her child, 
the parent/legal guardian shall request in writing that the medication be 
administered on a pending field trip/activity by a non-School Board employee 
designated by the parent, or another trained person designated by the School 
Board.  Such request shall include supporting documentation as outlined in this 
policy.  The request shall state that the parent/legal guardian gives permission for 
the designee or another trained person to administer the medication.  If the parent 
does not designate a non-School Board employee to attend the field trip/activity, 
once the proper documentation has been submitted, the School Board shall assign 
a trained School Board employee to accompany the student on the field trip or 
other school-sponsored activity. 

 
12. EXTENDED DAY CARE 
 

In the event that a student attends extended day care and requires medication 
outside school hours (before or after school), medication orders that include the 
dosage(s), time(s), and medication(s), shall be obtained from the 
physician/dentist/other authorized prescriber before any administration of 
medication may be administered by properly trained personnel. 

 
13. SUNSCREEN 
 

In accordance with statutory provisions, sunscreen means a compound topically 
applied to prevent sunburn, and for the purpose of this policy shall not be 
considered medication.  A student may possess and self-apply sunscreen at 



FILE:  H-3.6c 
   
   

City of Baker School Board                                                                                  13 of 13 

school, on a school bus, or at a school-sponsored function or activity without 
parental consent or the authorization of a physician. 
 
If a student is unable to self-apply sunscreen, a school employee may volunteer 
to apply the sunscreen to the student.  However, a  school employee may apply 
sunscreen to a student only if his/her parent or legal guardian has provided 
written consent for this application.  Neither the School Board nor the school 
employee shall be held liable for any adverse reaction relating to the employee's 
application of the sunscreen or his/her cessation of such application. 

 
 
14. STUDENT CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

All student information shall be kept confidential.  The parent/legal guardian shall 
be required to sign the Authorization for Release of Confidential Information form, 
so that health information can be shared between the School Board and health 
care providers, such as hospitals, physician, service agency, school nurse, and/or 
other health provider. 

 
 
Revised:  October, 2001 Revised:  December, 2016 
Revised:  June, 2008 Revised:  July 25, 2018 
Revised:  November 3, 2009 Revised:  December 6, 2022 
Revised:  December, 2012    Revised:  August 1, 2023 
Revised:  May 3, 2016 Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§17:81, 17:436.1, 17:436.3; Health and Safety, Bulletin 135, 

Louisiana Department of Education; Board minutes, 11-3-09, 5-3-16, 7-25-18, 12-
6-22, 8-1-23. 



FILE:  H-3.6h H-3.6i 
Cf:  G-2.4c, H-3.6 

Cf:  H-4, H-4.1, H-12 
 

City of Baker School District  1 of 4 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR STUDENTS 
 
 
The City of Baker School Board recognizes the connection between a student’s social, 
emotional, and mental well-being and the student’s academic success.  The School Board 
desires to assist students in developing the social and emotional skills needed for 
participation in the educational environment and society at large.  In addition to any 
support services provided by the School Board, the School Board shall allow behavioral 
health providers to provide medically necessary behavioral health services authorized by 
an independent third-party payor, including but not limited to Medicaid and commercial 
insurance, to a student at school during school hours if the student's parent or legal 
guardian provides a written request for such behavioral health provider and services to 
the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee, and all other requirements of La. Rev. 
Stat. Ann. §§17:173 and 17:3996, this policy, and any administrative procedures are met. 
 
A behavioral health provider who provides services according to this policy shall: 
 
1. Maintain general liability insurance coverage in an amount not less than 

$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $1,000,000.00 per aggregate and provide a 
certificate of insurance naming the public school as the certificate holder.   

 
2. Complete a criminal background check conducted by the Louisiana State Police 

and shall pay all related costs.  Applied behavior analysis providers who are 
licensed, certified, or registered by the Louisiana Behavior Analyst Board, who 
provide documentation of having passed a criminal background check conducted 
by the Louisiana State Police and are in good standing with the Board shall not be 
required to complete an additional criminal background check. 

 
 No person who has been convicted of or pled nolo contendere to a crime listed in 

La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §15:587.1 (C) shall be permitted to provide behavioral health 
services to a student at school during school hours. 

 
Behavioral health services shall be permitted during school hours if the student's parent 
or legal guardian presents a behavioral health evaluation performed by an evaluator as 
well as an assessment and authorized treatment plan performed by a behavioral health 
provider chosen by the parent or legal guardian and the evaluation indicates that the 
services are necessary during school hours to assist the student with behavioral health 
impairments associated with a medical diagnosis that the evaluator determines are 
interfering with the student's ability to thrive in the educational setting.  A behavioral health 
evaluation or assessment presented by the parent or legal guardian of a student shall not 
be construed as an independent educational evaluation for purposes of determining if a 
student meets the criteria established for eligibility for special education and related 
services. 
 
In addition, the parent or legal guardian of a student receiving services from a behavioral 



FILE:  H-3.6h H-3.6i 
Cf:  G-2.4c, H-3.6 

Cf:  H-4, H-4.1, H-12 
 

City of Baker School District  2 of 4 

service provider shall be required to execute a consent to release information form 
between the provider and the School Board. 
 
No behavioral health evaluation, assessment, or authorized treatment plan shall be 
prohibited from being performed on school property in order to establish medical 
necessity or to deliver medically necessary services.  Behavioral health services may be 
provided during any part of the school day, including any and all instructional time in 
English, reading, mathematics, and science if the School Board and the behavioral health 
provider mutually agree that it is in the best interest of the student.  The school 
administrator and service provider shall work collaboratively to create a consistent 
schedule that meets the medical needs of the student and complies with the provider's 
ethical code of conduct. In developing the student's plan, consideration shall include 
impacts on a school's operations and a student's testing schedule. If the parties cannot 
agree, then the parties shall engage in a dispute resolution process set forth by the state 
Department of Education. 
 
The School Board shall not enter into a contract or an exclusive agreement with a 
behavioral health provider that prohibits the parent or legal guardian from choosing the 
behavioral health provider for the student.  However the provisions of this paragraph shall 
not impair any existing contract on the effective date of this policy, or the renewal thereof. 
The cost of all behavioral health services provided to a student shall be the sole 
responsibility of the parent or legal guardian, individually or through an applicable health 
insurance policy, Medicaid, or other third-party payor, other than the School Board, that 
has made funds available for the payment for the services provided. 
 
While on a school campus, a behavioral service provider shall comply with, and abide by, 
the terms of any Individualized Education Plan, Individualized Accommodation Plan, 
Section 504 Plan, Behavior Management Plan, or Individualized Health Plan applicable 
to a student who is a patient of the provider.  The services furnished by a provider shall 
be incorporated into a written treatment plan applicable to a student. 
 
The School Board shall establish reporting requirements for a behavioral health provider 
related to the student's progress and student and school safety concerns as related to 
the student's educational program. 
 
The Superintendent shall approve administrative procedures to provide for student safety 
and effective implementation of this policy. 
 
The School Board may establish sanctions, including termination of a provider's 
authorization to provide services on any school campus, against a behavioral health 
provider for failure to comply with the provisions of this policy and associated procedures 
and/or any other School Board policy and procedures. 
 
Any behavioral health evaluation, assessment, or treatment plan administered by the 
School Board shall not supersede the behavioral health evaluation, assessment, or 



FILE:  H-3.6h H-3.6i 
Cf:  G-2.4c, H-3.6 

Cf:  H-4, H-4.1, H-12 
 

City of Baker School District  3 of 4 

treatment plan provided by an independent behavioral health provider of a student's 
parent's choosing.  Any applied behavior analysis services provided by the School Board 
shall be delivered either by behavioral health providers licensed, certified, or registered 
by the Louisiana Behavior Analyst Board in accordance with La. Rev. Stat. Ann. §37:3701 
et seq. or behavioral health providers providing services in accordance with La. Rev. Stat. 
Ann. §37:3715.  
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Applied behavior analysis provider shall mean a provider who is licensed, certified, or 
registered by the Louisiana Behavior Analyst Board and is in good standing to provide 
applied behavior analysis services. 
 
Applied behavior analysis services shall include the design, implementation, and 
evaluation of systematic instructional and environmental modifications by an applied 
behavior analysis provider to produce socially significant improvements in behavior as 
described in the Behavior Analyst Practice Act. 
 
Behavioral health evaluation shall include but not be limited to the following criteria: 
 

• Diagnosis. 
• Type of intervention. 
• Length of intervention. 
• Identification of a student's goals. 
• Identification of impact of student behavior on a student's educational program. 
• Recommendations for applied behavior analysis services. 

 
Behavioral health provider shall mean a provider who is licensed by the Louisiana 
Department of Health or a health profession licensing board and is in good standing to 
provide behavioral health services in Louisiana including but not limited to a psychiatrist, 
psychologist, medical psychologist, licensed specialist in school psychology, marriage 
and family therapist, professional counselor, clinical social worker, applied behavioral 
analysis provider, or a behavioral health provider organization licensed to provide health 
services in Louisiana. 
 
Behavioral health services shall include but not be limited to individual psychotherapy, 
family psychotherapy, psychotropic medication management, community psychiatric 
support and treatment, crisis intervention, and medically necessary applied behavior 
analysis services. 
 
Evaluator shall mean a licensed psychiatrist, psychologist, medical psychologist, licensed 
specialist in school psychology, professional counselor, marriage and family therapist, 
clinical social worker, or applied behavioral analysis provider who is certified by the 
respective board of examiners in Louisiana to provide necessary evaluations and who is 
not an employee of the School Board or the Louisiana Department of Education. 



FILE:  H-3.6h H-3.6i 
Cf:  G-2.4c, H-3.6 

Cf:  H-4, H-4.1, H-12 
 

City of Baker School District  4 of 4 

Independent third-party payor means an individual who serves as a case reviewer for 
Medicaid or commercial insurers.  

Medically necessary services means services that meet the following requirements:   

1. Provided for the diagnosis, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, illness, 
injury, or disease.  

2. Except for clinical trials that are described within the policy, not for experimental, 
investigational, or cosmetic purposes.  

3. Within the generally accepted standards of medical care in the community.   

4. Not solely for the convenience of the insured, the insured's family, or the provider.   
 
 
No provisions of this policy shall be construed to supersede any of the following: 
 
1. The authority of a student's Individualized Education Program Team or Section 

504 Committee to determine appropriate services for a student pursuant to 
applicable federal and state. 

 
2. The provisions of the Behavioral Health Services Provider Licensing Law or any 

regulation promulgated by the Louisiana Department of Health pursuant to that 
law. 

 
3. The provisions of the Behavior Analysis Practice Act. 
 
New policy:  March 3, 2020 
Recoded from H-3.6h:  June, 2024 
Revised:  August, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ref: 20 USC 1232(g-i) (Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act); La. Rev. Stat. Ann. 

§§17:7, 17:173; Board minutes, 3-3-20. 



jcatlin
Text Box
13,185.00

jcatlin
Text Box
19,844.00

jcatlin
Text Box
21,748,554.00

jcatlin
Line

jcatlin
Line





Project: Date: 9/27/2024

Architect:

Revision:

S&C Quote #

112

DESCRIPTION QUAN UNIT LABOR MAT./SUB LABOR COST MAT./ SUB COST C LINE TOTAL REMARKS

Drainage 1 LS $0.00 $8,893.67 $0.00 $8,893.67 2 $8,893.67 Amtek

Sidewalk Demo Sawcut 1 LS $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 2 $250.00 ATM

Form Sidewalk 30 LF $3.00 $2.00 $90.00 $60.00 2 $193.99 S&CO

Concrete 4 CY $0.00 $140.00 $0.00 $560.00 2 $560.00 Quality

Place & Finish 70 SF $0.00 $5.00 $0.00 $350.00 2 $350.00   

Broadcast Seed 1 SF $200.00 $100.00 $200.00 $100.00 2 $397.76   

Fence Removal 1 LS $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 2 $250.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

$290.00 $10,463.67 $10,895.42

W. C. Code #5403 14.61% $42.37

15.93% $46.20

18.34% $53.19

48.88% ) 48.88%  

>>>>>>>>>>> $431.75

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Direct Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $10,895.42 $10,895.42

3.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

1.75% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

2.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $400.25

4.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $640.40

5.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Indirect Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $1,040.65 $1,040.65

=============

Subtotal      >>>>>>>>>>> $11,936.08 $11,936.08

General Liability Insurance 0.64% >>>>>>>>>>> $76.21

Builder's Risk Insurance 0.32% >>>>>>>>>>> $38.41

OCP Liability Insurance 0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

P&P Bonds 1.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $179.04

$12,229.74

8.00% $837.09

8.00% $117.79

=============

TOTAL  QUOTATION  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>$13,185.00

Required Number Days Extension of Time  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> 0 DAYS

Grand Subtotal  >>>>>>>>>>

Overhead & Profit on Subcontractor's Work ..................................................................

Overhead & Profit on General Contractor's Work ...................................................

Sales Tax on Rental Equipment ..................................................................

Small Tools - % of Material

Insurance on Equipment - % of Equipment

Safety Supplies - % of Labor / Sub

Clean Up - % of Labor / Sub

Drayage - % of Materials

Sales Tax on Material ..................................................................

Subtotal .................................................................................................................................................................................................

Insurance on Labor .......….........................................................

Taxes on Labor ...................................................................................................................................

Fringe Benefits on Labor  ........................................................................................................

(Total Ins, Taxes, Fringes on Labor  =   

Total Labor, Insurance on Labor, Fringes on Labor..........................................................................................

Stuart & Company

6126 Crestmount Drive  |  Baton Rouge, LA  70809  |  Phone: 225.293.8650  |  Fax: 225.293.8651 

Additions & Renovations to Baker High School
Manning Architects

Add catch basin between Building A and Football field to drain 

holding water. This includes demoing a section of sidewalk, 

repouring, and regrading around new basin. Will broadcast seed 

over graded dirt at completion

$13,185.00





 

 

6126 Crestmount Dr.    ♦    Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809    ♦    Phone: 225.293.8650    ♦    Fax: 225.293.8651 

Quotat ion  
 

TO: Manning Architects DATE: 8/28/2024 

FROM: Jason Catlin QUOTE #: 110 

PROJECT: Baker High School Renovations and Additions 

DESCRIPTION 

OF CHANGES: Corner Guards at Locations Shown on Plan Provided by Architect 
 

 

Quotation: $6,659.00 
 

Attached is a copy of our estimate and breakdown. 

We will require 0 calendar days extension of contract time for this change if we receive your 
formal authorization to proceed within the next five calendar days.   

The cumulative effect of this and other changes may result in extended general conditions 
costs.  Therefore, we reserve the right to claim extended general conditions costs at a later 
date. 

The proposal is firm for five calendar days from the above quotation date. If Stuart receives 
this executed Proposal back after five calendar days from the above quotation date, then 
Stuart reserves the right to perform the work as provided for above, reject the approval of 
the expired proposal and, at Stuart’s discretion, submit a revised proposal.  

We have included all supporting documentation for your review. If this Proposal is 
acceptable, please execute the proposal at the bottom, return it to Stuart and prepare and 
forward to Stuart an AIA change order for the amount stated, including the time extension 
as provided above.  This proposal and all its attachments shall be part of any change order 
to our contract. Only work specifically described in this proposal and its attachments is 
included.  

 

By executing below, I agree to the terms of this Proposal and direct Stuart to commence the 
work described herein. 

Accepted By:    

Printed Name:        Jason Catlin 

Date:         
 

 

 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46

8/28/2024 | 12:28 PM CDT



Project: Date: 8/28/2024

Architect:

Revision: S&C Quote #
110

DESCRIPTION QUAN UNIT LABOR MAT./SUB LABOR COST MAT./ SUB COST C LINE TOTAL REMARKS

Cornerguards 2" x 8' 1 LS $0.00 $4,588.83 $0.00 $4,588.83 2 $4,588.83 S&CO

Installation 0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

2 men @ 10 hrs = 20hrs 20 HR $28.00 $0.00 $560.00 $0.00 1 $833.73 S&CO

Pan head screws 1 LS $68.00 $0.00 $68.00 $0.00 2 $101.24   

 0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

$628.00 $4,588.83 $5,523.80

W. C. Code #5403 14.61% $91.75

15.93% $100.04

18.34% $115.18

48.88% ) 48.88%  

>>>>>>>>>>> $934.97

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Direct Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $5,523.80 $5,523.80

3.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

1.75% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

2.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $194.17

4.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $310.67

5.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Indirect Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $504.84 $504.84

=============

Subtotal      >>>>>>>>>>> $6,028.64 $6,028.64

General Liability Insurance 0.64% >>>>>>>>>>> $38.49

Builder's Risk Insurance 0.32% >>>>>>>>>>> $19.40

OCP Liability Insurance 0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

P&P Bonds 1.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $90.43

$6,176.96

8.00% $367.11

8.00% $115.18

=============

TOTAL  QUOTATION  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>$6,659.00

Required Number Days Extension of Time  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> 0 DAYS

Grand Subtotal  >>>>>>>>>>

Overhead & Profit on Subcontractor's Work ..................................................................

Overhead & Profit on General Contractor's Work ...................................................

Sales Tax on Rental Equipment ..................................................................

Small Tools - % of Material

Insurance on Equipment - % of Equipment

Safety Supplies - % of Labor / Sub

Clean Up - % of Labor / Sub

Drayage - % of Materials

Sales Tax on Material ..................................................................

Subtotal .................................................................................................................................................................................................

Insurance on Labor .......….........................................................

Taxes on Labor ...................................................................................................................................

Fringe Benefits on Labor  ........................................................................................................

(Total Ins, Taxes, Fringes on Labor  =   

Total Labor, Insurance on Labor, Fringes on Labor..........................................................................................

Stuart & Company

6126 Crestmount Drive  |  Baton Rouge, LA  70809  |  Phone: 225.293.8650  |  Fax: 225.293.8651 

Additions & Renovations to Baker High School
Manning Architects

Cornerguards at Locations shown on plan provided by Arch
$6,659.00

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



W D

ARCHIVES

1112

TECH ROOM

1111

ARCHIVED
CUM

RECORDS

1132

CUM
RECORDS/COPY

ROOM

1131

PARENTING
CONFERENCE

ROOM

1137

COUNSELING
OFFICE

1134

COUNSELING
OFFICE

1133

GUIDANCE
CLERK

1129

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1135

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1136

MEDIA
CENTER

1109

GYMNASIUM

1122

CONCESSIONS

1101
WOMEN'S

RESTROOM

1105

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1104

LOBBY

1100

COUNSELORS'
CONFERENCE

1138

GUIDANCE
RECEPTION

1128

MEDIA
CENTER

RESTROOM

1113

WEIGHT
ROOM

1139

LAUNDRY

1140

GYM
LOCKER

STORAGE
(FEMALE)

1114

BASKETBALL
LOCKER
ROOM

(FEMALE)

1119

GYM
LOCKER
ROOM

(FEMALE)

1116

GYM
LOCKER
ROOM
(MALE)

1127

BASKETBALL
LOCKER
ROOM
(MALE)

1124

GYM
LOCKER

RESTROOM
(FEMALE)

1118

GYM
LOCKER

RESTROOM
(MALE)

1121

P.E. OFFICE
(MALE)

1126

BASKETBALL
OFFICE
(MALE)

1125

BASKETBALL
OFFICE

(FEMALE)

1120

P.E. OFFICE
(FEMALE)

1117

GYM
LOCKER

STORAGE
(MALE)

1115

A200 1

A200

2

CHAIR
STORAGE

1110

A200

3

A605

1

A609

1

A608

1

A604

5

1139B

11111112

1131

1134

1137
1138

1135

11361133

1HW3

1HW2

1132

1113

1124
1127A

1125
1126

1119

1120

1116A

1117

1116B

1
1
2
7
B

1118

1139A

1121

1140A

1CRD3

1109A 1109B

1110A

1110B

1HW1

V.I.F.

32' - 2 3/8"

V.I.F.

160.8°

CLOSET

1103

CORRIDOR

1CRD1

CONCESSIONS
STORAGE

1102

JANITOR

1106

CORRIDOR

1123

HALLWAY

1HW2

S
3
A

E
,

5

S3AE,

5

S3EE,

1
S3AG,

1

S6AE,

5

S
3
C

E
,

5

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S6AE,

5

S6AE,

5

S6AE,

5

S3AA,1

S6EG,

5

S6AG,

2

S3EG,

5S3CE,

5

S3G, 2 S3G, 2
S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1
S3AA,1

S
3
C

E
,

6

S3AC,

3

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S6EG,

2

S
3
G

, 
2

S6GG,

2

S3AA,1

S6AA,

1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S
6
E

E
,

1

S3EE,

1

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3G, 2
S3G, 2

S3EE,

1
S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1S3EE,

1
S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1

/
M

A
T

C
H

L
IN

E
1

A
1
0
1
-A

2

E12 E13 E14 E15 E16 E17 E18 E21 E22

EJ

EJ

EH

EH

EGECEA

E2

E3

E5

E8

E4

E7

S2A, 1

S3AA,1

S2A, 1

S2A, 1

1109C

3
2

' 
- 

1
"

9
' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

1
2

' 
- 

0
 1

/4
"

1
7

' 
- 

7
 3

/4
"

1
4

' 
- 

4
 1

/4
"

15' - 9 5/8" 39' - 8" 42' - 1" 18' - 3" 12' - 3"

CORRIDOR

1CRD2

A600

1

A601

4

A601

3

1101A
1102

1CRD1A
1CRD1B

1103

1122B

CORRIDOR

1CRD3

1122A

1140B

1122A

EQ 9' - 7 5/8" 9' - 7 5/8" 9' - 7 5/8" 9' - 7 5/8" 9' - 7 5/8" 28' - 10 7/8" EQ

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S6AE,

5

1129

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

A700

1

S6AE,

5

S3EE,

1

S3CE,

6

S3AE,

5

S1A,1,7
S6AE,

5

A623

1

A621

9

EXISTING ELECTRICAL
SUB-PANEL EQUIPMENT
TO REMAIN; RE:
ELECTRICAL

1114 1115

S3AA,1

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

HALLWAY

1HW1

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1143

IBCA
CLASSROOM

1142

HALLWAY

1HW3

TEACHER'S
LOUNGE

1157

IBCA
CLASSROOM

1141

EXISTING ROOF DRAIN
LEADER TO REMAIN, RE:

MEP

EXISTING COILING DOOR
TO REMAIN
EXISTING COILING DOOR
TO REMAIN

10 1/2" 2' - 8" 14' - 8" 2' - 8" 15' - 4" 2' - 8"

9 1/2"

6' - 0 1/2" 9' - 10" 2' - 8" 17' - 4" 2' - 8" 3' - 6 1/2" 8' - 1 1/2" 2' - 8" 7' - 5 1/2" 6' - 2" 6' - 1"

SOFFIT ABOVE

ABUT NEW CONCRETE
SIDEWALK AT EXISTING
CONCRETE, MATCH
EXISTING GRADE; RE:
CIVIL

1128

S1A,1,7

S1A,

2,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7
S1A,1,7

S2B, 6,

7

S2B, 6,

7

S2B, 6,

7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S2A,1

SITE LIGHTING; RE:
ELECTRICAL &

LANDSCAPE
SITE LIGHTING; RE:
ELECTRICAL &
LANDSCAPE

SITE LIGHTING; RE:
ELECTRICAL &
LANDSCAPE

SITE LIGHTING; RE:
ELECTRICAL &

LANDSCAPE

V.I.F.

160.8°

S6AE,

5

S3EE,

1

S2E, 1

S2E, 1

S2E, 1

S2E, 1

S2E, 1
S3EE,

1

S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7S1A,1,7

S6EG,

1

S6AE,

5

S6AE,

5

S2F,

6,7

S2E, 1

S2E, 1
S2E, 1

S2E, 1

S3E, 1S3E, 1

S3F, 1 S3F, 1

S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1

S2E, 1

S2G,

2,7

S3G, 2

S6EE,

1

S6GG,

2

S2G,

2,7

S6GG,

2

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3AA,1

EXISTING LANDSCAPING
TO REMAIN; RE:

LANDSCAPE

B
A2 A1

B

C1 C1 C1 C1

D 1CRD2B

1100A 1100B

1
' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

4
' 
- 

0
"1
' 
- 

5
 3

/4
"

1
' 
- 

5
 3

/4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

1
' 
- 

7
 1

/4
"4
' 
- 

0
"1

' 
- 

6
"

S1E,5,7

R

PC2C2C2C2C2C2

V V

V

V V

S1G

1,7

S2A, 1

RELOCATED ROOF DRAIN;
RE: PLUMBING

1123

DN

ROOF CANOPY ABOVE

EXIST. CONC. RISER; RE: 
LANDSCAPE FOR NEW 
SIDEWALK TIE-IN

HOLD

11' - 8"

HOLD

11' - 8"

1CRD2A
EXIST. DOORS 
TO REMAIN; PTD.

S1G

1,7

S3G, 2
S3EG,

1

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

1100CO

1122C 1122D

EXIST. DOOR TO 
REMAIN; PTD.

KNEEWALL 
BELOW

E19

EXISTING BLEACHERS TO
REMAIN, N.I.C.

CONCRETE SIDEWALK,
RE: CIVIL

A608

6

-2' - 0"

-2' - 0"

FLOOR PLAN  LEGEND - BUILDING A

EXISTING WALL TO REMAIN

NEW WALL PARTITION; 
RE: PARTITION TYPES

NEW MASONRY WALL INFILL

NEW DOOR & FRAME; 
RE: DOOR SCHEDULE

REFER TO G102 FOR PARTITION TYPES

REFER TO A-5.00 FOR STAIR AND RAMP PLANS AND
SECTIONS

REFER TO A-6.12 FOR ENLARGED BATHROOM PLANS
AND ELEVATIONS

REFER TO A-8.00 FOR OPENING SCHEDULE, A-8.01 FOR 
DOOR SCHEDULE, AND A-8.03 FOR FINISH SCHEDULE

REVIEW MEP AND RCP PLANS PRIOR TO FRAMING TO 
ALLOW FOR PROPER CENTERING OF LIGHT FIXTURES, 
VENTS, ETC. 

THE GC SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS OF THE EXISTING 
SPACE AND OF ANY EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO 
REMAIN BY ACTUAL MEASUREMENT BEFORE ANY 
WORK IS PERFORMED. NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
HIDDEN CONDITIONS THAT WILL NOT ALLOW 
EXECUTIONS OF DESIGN INTENT AS SHOWN IN CDS. 
GC TO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY AND 
ALL DISCREPANCIES FOUND AFTER THE WORK IS 
PERFORMED, AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE 
OWNER. 

THE GC SHOULD VERIFY ALL FINISHED DIMENSIONS 
BASED ON THE SUBCONTRACTOR'S SHOP DRAWINGS. 
FIELD CONDITIONS ALTERING ANY DIMENSIONS 
SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT TO THE 
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT. 

THE GC AND SUBS MUST IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND SHALL NOT 
PROCEED OR ALLOW SUB-CONTRACTORS TO 
PROCEED WITH WORK IN THOSE AREAS UNTIL SAID 
DISCREPANCIES ARE RESOLVED. 

WHEN CHANGES ARE REQUIRED, DUE TO ANY 
REASON, NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND 
PRIOR TO PERFORMING ANY OF THE WORK. CHANGES 
THAT ALTER THE CONTRACT AMOUNT MUST HAVE THE 
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER AND THE 
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF SUCH 
WORK.

ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
APPLICABLE CODES AND TO THE HIGHEST 
STANDARDS OF TRADE PRACTICE. 

CONTRACTORS SHALL REMEDY WITHOUT COST TO 
OWNER ANY DEFECTS DUE TO FAULTY WORKMANSHIP

ALL HANGERS, CHANNELS, RODS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS SUPPORT STEEL SHALL BE 
FURNISHED AND INSTALLED AS NECESSARY FOR 
PROPER SUPPORT OF SUSPENDED/ SUPPORTED 
EQUIPMENT AND SHALL BE FASTENED TO STEEL, 
CONCRETE, OR MASONRY AS PER LOADING 
REQUIREMENTS. 

DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FINISH FACE OF WALL 
ASSEMBLY UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED; RE: 
PARTITION SCHEDULE

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A-1

B-3

B-1A-2 C

D
B-2

E

F

G

H
N

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NO.

DATE ISSUED FOR

3
2

0
0
 G

R
O

O
M

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

A
K

E
R

, 
L
A

 7
0
7

1
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

KEY PLAN

B
A

K
E

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

FLOOR PLAN -
SECTOR A-1

A101-A1

17045

10/30/17

11/22/17

01/08/18

02/09/18

03/19/18

04/01/22

50% DD

100% DD

50% CD

PERMIT SET

ISSUED FOR BID

ISSUED FOR BID

1/8" = 1'-0"A200 A101-A1

1 FLOOR PLAN - SECTOR A-1

DATE REVISION ISSUED FOR

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



-

-

D
W

-

STORAGE
ROOM

1170

VAULT

1158

TEACHER'S
LOUNGE

1157

ASSISTANT
PRINCIPAL
OF ADMIN

1156

ASSISTANT
PRINCIPAL

OF
INSTRUCTION

1154

EXECUTIVE
SECRETARY

1151

PRINCIPAL
OFFICE

1153

PRINCIPAL
RESTROOM

1152

COPY

1159

OFFICE
SUPPLY
STORE

1160

DEAN OF
STUDENT'S

OFFICE

1155

ATTENDANCE
CLERK

1150

ADMINISTRATIVE
CONFERENCE

ROOM

1165 CLINIC

1162

CLINIC RR

1163

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1167

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1166

IBCA
CLASSROOM

1141

IBCA
CLASSROOM

1142

SPED
CLASSROOM

1148

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1144

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1143

RECEPTION

1149

SPED
CLASSROOM

1145

SPED
RESTROOM

1147

SERVER
ROOM

1168

ENTRY
LOBBY

1200

A200

3

A200

2

CONFERENCE
ROOM

STORAGE

1164

A607

1

A605

2

A606

6

SPED
CHANGING

ROOM

1146

11441143

1141A

11521153115411551156

1151

1160

1
1
6
2

11701HW3

1159

1158

1142A

1145 1148

1146A 1146B

1
1
6
3

1165A1165B1167 1166

1168

1164

1157A

1CRD3

1200A

1169

JANITOR'S
CLOSET

1169

HALLWAY

1HW3

S
6
A

E
,

5

S3AC,

3

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S
6
A

E
,

5

S3AE,

5
S3AE,

5 S3AE,

5

S3AA,1 S3AA,1 S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AG,2

S2A,1

S3G, 2

S6AA,1

S6AE,

5

S3EE,

1

S3AA,1
S3AA,1

S3AG,

1

S3AG,2

S3AA,1
S6AA,1

S6AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AG,2

S3AG,

1

S3G, 2 S3G, 2

S

S3AG,2

S3A,5

S
6
E

G
,

1

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S6AG,5

S3GG,

1

S3GG,

1

S
6
A

G
,5

S3EG,

1
S3EG,

1

S3AC,

3

S3G, 2

S3A, 1

S3G, 2

S3AA,1

S3GG,

1

/
M

A
T

C
H

L
IN

E
1

A
1
0
1
-A

1

E21 E22

EJ

EJEH EK EN

EG

E2

E3

E5

E8

E7

EL

A

30 31 32

1

1.6

2

/
M

A
T

C
H

L
IN

E
1

A
1
0
1
-B

1

C44

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S2A, 1

S2A, 1

S2A, 1

5' - 0"

1107

A602

1

1147

1141B

1142B

1157B

A406

8

S3AE,

5

S6AE,

5

A623

1
SIM

A622

6

A623

1
SIM

CORRIDOR

1CRD2

CHAIR
STORAGE

1110

MEDIA
CENTER

1109

TECH ROOM

1111

ARCHIVES

1112

GYM
LOCKER

STORAGE
(MALE)

1115

GYM
LOCKER

STORAGE
(FEMALE)

1114

HALLWAY

1HW1

ROOF
HATCH
CLOSET

1107

GUIDANCE
RECEPTION

1128

GUIDANCE
CLERK

1129

CUM
RECORDS/COPY

ROOM

1131

PARENTING
CONFERENCE

ROOM

1137

HALLWAY

1HW2

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1135

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1136

CORRIDOR

1CRD3

CORRIDOR

1CRD3

CORRIDOR

1CRD4
1.8

SOFFIT 
ABOVE

SOFFIT 
ABOVE

1CRD2B

D

C1 C1

E

S2A,1

S2A,1

S2A,1

RELOCATED ROOF DRAIN;
RE: PLUMBING

C1 C1

S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7 S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,5,7

S1E,5,7S1E,5,7

S1A,5,7
S1G,

5,7

S1A,5,7
S1A,5,7S1A,1,7

S1E,5,7

C2

S1E,5,7S1E,5,7

S1E,5,7

S3E,5
S3EG,

1
S3EG,

1

S1A,1,7

S1A,5,7

S2A, 1

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7S1A,1,7S1A,1,7

N

G1

R1128

1109B

1110A

1110B

11111112

1114 1115

1HW1

1129

1131

1HW2

1137

11361135

1149

T

S3AA,1

12' - 3" 33' - 0 7/8" 24' - 0 3/4" 24' - 2 1/4" 12' - 10 1/4"

6' - 1 1/8" 4' - 10 3/8"2' - 8" 8' - 0 3/4" 2' - 8" 8' - 0 3/4" 2' - 8" 8' - 0 3/4" 2' - 8" 8' - 0 3/4" 2' - 8" 6' - 8 3/8"

1' - 5 1/4"

2' - 8" 8' - 0" 2' - 8" 6' - 10" 2' - 8" 6' - 10" 2' - 8" 3' - 3 3/8"

C2C2C2C2C2C2C2C2C2
P

C2

ALIGN

S3AE,

5

S6AE,

5

S1E,5,7

S1E,5,7

EXISTING ROOF DRAIN
LEADER TO REMAIN, RE:

MEPS1A,1,7

S6A, 1,

7

S6AA,1

S3A, 1

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S2A, 1S2A, 1

S3A,

1,7

S3AG,

1

S3AG,

1

S3GG,

1

S3G, 1

S3AA,

2

S3AA,1

S3AG,

1
S3AG,2

S3AA,1

S6AE,

5

S6AG,

2

S3G, 2S3G, 2

S3EG,

5
S3CE,

5

S6AE,

5

S3AC,

3

S3CE,

5

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S1A,1,7

S3AA,1

S3AG,

1

RELOCATED ROOF DRAIN;
RE: PLUMBING

S1E,

2,7

S1E, 5S1E, 5

A2004

CANOPY 
ABOVE

E

A406

9

A432

2

CONCRETE SIDEWALK, RE:
CIVIL

A722

2

A623

6

A623

7

REFER TO G102 FOR PARTITION TYPES

REFER TO A-5.00 FOR STAIR AND RAMP PLANS AND
SECTIONS

REFER TO A-6.12 FOR ENLARGED BATHROOM PLANS
AND ELEVATIONS

REFER TO A-8.00 FOR OPENING SCHEDULE, A-8.01 FOR 
DOOR SCHEDULE, AND A-8.03 FOR FINISH SCHEDULE

REVIEW MEP AND RCP PLANS PRIOR TO FRAMING TO 
ALLOW FOR PROPER CENTERING OF LIGHT FIXTURES, 
VENTS, ETC. 

THE GC SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS OF THE EXISTING 
SPACE AND OF ANY EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO 
REMAIN BY ACTUAL MEASUREMENT BEFORE ANY 
WORK IS PERFORMED. NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
HIDDEN CONDITIONS THAT WILL NOT ALLOW 
EXECUTIONS OF DESIGN INTENT AS SHOWN IN CDS. 
GC TO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY AND 
ALL DISCREPANCIES FOUND AFTER THE WORK IS 
PERFORMED, AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE 
OWNER. 

THE GC SHOULD VERIFY ALL FINISHED DIMENSIONS 
BASED ON THE SUBCONTRACTOR'S SHOP DRAWINGS. 
FIELD CONDITIONS ALTERING ANY DIMENSIONS 
SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT TO THE 
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT. 

THE GC AND SUBS MUST IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND SHALL NOT 
PROCEED OR ALLOW SUB-CONTRACTORS TO 
PROCEED WITH WORK IN THOSE AREAS UNTIL SAID 
DISCREPANCIES ARE RESOLVED. 

WHEN CHANGES ARE REQUIRED, DUE TO ANY 
REASON, NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND 
PRIOR TO PERFORMING ANY OF THE WORK. CHANGES 
THAT ALTER THE CONTRACT AMOUNT MUST HAVE THE 
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER AND THE 
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF SUCH 
WORK.

ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
APPLICABLE CODES AND TO THE HIGHEST 
STANDARDS OF TRADE PRACTICE. 

CONTRACTORS SHALL REMEDY WITHOUT COST TO 
OWNER ANY DEFECTS DUE TO FAULTY WORKMANSHIP

ALL HANGERS, CHANNELS, RODS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS SUPPORT STEEL SHALL BE 
FURNISHED AND INSTALLED AS NECESSARY FOR 
PROPER SUPPORT OF SUSPENDED/ SUPPORTED 
EQUIPMENT AND SHALL BE FASTENED TO STEEL, 
CONCRETE, OR MASONRY AS PER LOADING 
REQUIREMENTS. 

DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FINISH FACE OF WALL 
ASSEMBLY UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED; RE: 
PARTITION SCHEDULE

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

FLOOR PLAN  LEGEND - BUILDING A

EXISTING WALL TO REMAIN

NEW WALL PARTITION; 
RE: PARTITION TYPES

NEW MASONRY WALL INFILL

NEW DOOR & FRAME; 
RE: DOOR SCHEDULE

A-1

B-3

B-1A-2 C

D
B-2

E

F

G

H
N

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NO.

DATE ISSUED FOR

3
2

0
0
 G

R
O

O
M

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

A
K

E
R

, 
L
A

 7
0
7

1
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

KEY PLAN

B
A

K
E

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

FLOOR PLAN -
SECTOR A-2

A101-A2

17045

10/30/17

11/22/17

01/08/18

02/09/18

03/19/18

04/01/22

50% DD

100% DD

50% CD

PERMIT SET

ISSUED FOR BID

ISSUED FOR BID

1/8" = 1'-0"A200 A101-A2

1 FLOOR PLAN - SECTOR A-2

DATE REVISION ISSUED FOR

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



-

FEC

FEC

A202

2

3

A300

A201

1

1202 1206

1207 1209

1208 1211

1213

1214

1216

1204

1203 1205

1200D

1200B1200A

1212

1210

PERFORATED
METAL WALL ALONG
CONCRETE CURB

CONCRETE CURB,
RE: STRUCTURAL

STANDING SEAM 
METAL WALL 
PANEL

8" DOWNSPOUT
TRANSFER IN 
ROOF
ABOVE

STEEL TUBE FOR 
AWNING AND 
PERFORATED METAL
SCREEN WALL, RE:
STRUCTURAL

A500

1

2
7

' 
- 

8
 1

/4
"

2
8

' 
- 

6
"

3
3

' 
- 

5
"

2
4

' -
 1

0
"

29' - 3" 30' - 0" 30' - 0" 30' - 0" 28' - 7" 29' - 10"

24' - 10"

HOLD

8' - 0" 24' - 10"

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S6AE,

5

S3AG,

5

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AE,

5

S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1
S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1

S3AE,

5

S3AA,1

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S3AA,1

S3AG,

5

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

N

G1

1218

1217

1215

S3AA,

2

S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1

9TH GRADE
ACADEMY

CLASSROOM

1202

9TH GRADE
ACADEMY

CLASSROOM

1204

ELA
HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1206

ELA
HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1208

SOCIAL
STUDIES

HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1210

SOCIAL
STUDIES

HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1211

9TH GRADE
ACADEMY
FLEX LAB

1203

9TH GRADE
ACADEMY
FLEX LAB

1205

ELA
HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1207

SOCIAL
STUDIES

HUMANITIES
CLASSROOM

1209

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1214

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1213

ART
CLASSROOM

1212

LAB
STORAGE

1215

LAB

1216

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM

1218

ENTRY
LOBBY

1200

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM

1217

CORRIDOR

1201

2
4

' -
 1

0
"

H
O

L
D

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' -
 1

0
"

A

1

1.6

2

B DD

0.9

1.5

1.7

3

/
M

A
T

C
H

L
IN

E
1

A
1
0
1
-A

2

/MATCHLINE 1 A101-B2

DASHED LINE 
OF 
ROOF ABOVE

DASHED LINE OF 
CANOPY ABOVE

31' - 3 1/2"

-2' - 2"

-1' - 0"

0' - 0"

-1/4"

A430

3

A433

1
A430

2
SIM

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

UP

UP

5
' 
- 

0
"

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:1

2
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:1

2
)

UP

UP

U
P

ALIGN

A432

2

A701

2

A430

3
SIM

A701

1

A441

3

A441

1

26' - 7"
3' - 10 1/2"

30' - 3 1/2"

1' - 0"

A430

4

12' - 0 1/2"
6' - 6"

-2' - 0"

-1' - 0"

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

A441

1
SIM

1200C

A624

1

S3AE,

5

RECESSED BRICK NICHE
FOR TROPHY CASE

DASHED LINE OF 
ROOF ABOVE

UP

BRICK VENEER ON
INTERIOR WALL

ASSEMBLY

FACE OF CONCRETE
PLANTER AND KNEE WALL

5
' 
- 

0
"

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN - CONTRACTOR
TO REMOVE AND STORE
PLAQUE AT BASE OF
TREES DURING
CONSTURCTION

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN - CONTRACTOR
TO REMOVE AND STORE
PLAQUE AT BASE OF
TREES DURING
CONSTURCTION

S
L
O

P
E

SLOPE

10 3/8"

1' - 7 5/8"

5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 6"

28' - 9 3/4" 30' - 5" 30' - 0" 30' - 0"

20' - 4" 5' - 3"

PLANTING, RE:
LANDSCAPE

PLANTING, RE:
LANDSCAPE

30' - 0" 31' - 0" 30' - 0"

DASHED LINE 
OF 
ROOF ABOVE

13' - 0"

H1H1H1H1H1H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1 H1

6"

1
3

' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

1
1

' -
 1

0
 1

/2
"

1
' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

12' - 0 3/4" 11 1/4"

6
0

' 
- 

0
"

6
0

' 
- 

0
"

3
2

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

6
"

H1

H1

H1

H1

H1

H1

H1

H1

6
"

1
3

' 
- 

1
"

1
4

' 
- 

0
 1

/4
"

A
L
IG

N

4
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

S3AE,

5

8
' 
- 

6
"

1
2

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1' - 7"

1
' - 0

"

1' - 7" 2' - 6" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 6"

H2

H2

H2

H2

H2H2H2H2H2H2H2H2H2H2H2H2

10' - 0" 10' - 0" 10' - 0"

ART
STORAGE

1212A1212A

CONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVILCONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVIL

4

A300

A441

2

-1/4"

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

6
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
1

' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

1
1

"
1

1
' 
- 

7
"

6
' 
- 

8
"

4
9

' 
- 

8
 1

/4
"

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

U P

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

BROOM FINISHED SLAB
ON GRADE, RE: CIVIL

1.8

A619

10

A615

3

C2

J
J

S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S3AG,

5

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3AE,

5
S3AE,

5

4

A401

A432

1

2

A702

3 1/2" 5"

5"

DASHED LINE OF 
CLERESTORY ABOVE

A432

3

A432

4

A433

2
A433

3

A702

4

SLOPE

A433

4

A432

1

4' - 3 1/2"
9

' 
- 

4
"

1
' - 0

"

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

8" PREFINISHED METAL
DOWNSPOUT, TYP.

FLOOR PLAN  LEGEND - BUILDING B

NEW BRICK WALL

NEW WALL PARTITION; 
RE: PARTITION TYPES

RIGID INSULATION

REFER TO G102 FOR PARTITION TYPES

REFER TO A-5.00 FOR STAIR AND RAMP PLANS AND
SECTIONS

REFER TO A-6.12 FOR ENLARGED BATHROOM PLANS
AND ELEVATIONS

REFER TO A-8.00 FOR OPENING SCHEDULE, A-8.01 FOR 
DOOR SCHEDULE, AND A-8.03 FOR FINISH SCHEDULE

REVIEW MEP AND RCP PLANS PRIOR TO FRAMING TO 
ALLOW FOR PROPER CENTERING OF LIGHT FIXTURES, 
VENTS, ETC. 

THE GC SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS OF THE EXISTING 
SPACE AND OF ANY EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO 
REMAIN BY ACTUAL MEASUREMENT BEFORE ANY 
WORK IS PERFORMED. NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
HIDDEN CONDITIONS THAT WILL NOT ALLOW 
EXECUTIONS OF DESIGN INTENT AS SHOWN IN CDS. 
GC TO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY AND 
ALL DISCREPANCIES FOUND AFTER THE WORK IS 
PERFORMED, AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE 
OWNER. 

THE GC SHOULD VERIFY ALL FINISHED DIMENSIONS 
BASED ON THE SUBCONTRACTOR'S SHOP DRAWINGS. 
FIELD CONDITIONS ALTERING ANY DIMENSIONS 
SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT TO THE 
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT. 

THE GC AND SUBS MUST IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND SHALL NOT 
PROCEED OR ALLOW SUB-CONTRACTORS TO 
PROCEED WITH WORK IN THOSE AREAS UNTIL SAID 
DISCREPANCIES ARE RESOLVED. 

WHEN CHANGES ARE REQUIRED, DUE TO ANY 
REASON, NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND 
PRIOR TO PERFORMING ANY OF THE WORK. CHANGES 
THAT ALTER THE CONTRACT AMOUNT MUST HAVE THE 
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER AND THE 
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF SUCH 
WORK.

ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
APPLICABLE CODES AND TO THE HIGHEST 
STANDARDS OF TRADE PRACTICE. 

CONTRACTORS SHALL REMEDY WITHOUT COST TO 
OWNER ANY DEFECTS DUE TO FAULTY WORKMANSHIP

ALL HANGERS, CHANNELS, RODS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS SUPPORT STEEL SHALL BE 
FURNISHED AND INSTALLED AS NECESSARY FOR 
PROPER SUPPORT OF SUSPENDED/ SUPPORTED 
EQUIPMENT AND SHALL BE FASTENED TO STEEL, 
CONCRETE, OR MASONRY AS PER LOADING 
REQUIREMENTS. 

DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FINISH FACE OF WALL 
ASSEMBLY UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED; RE: 
PARTITION SCHEDULE

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A-1

B-3

B-1A-2 C

D
B-2

E

F

G

H
N

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NO.

DATE ISSUED FOR

3
2

0
0
 G

R
O

O
M

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

A
K

E
R

, 
L
A

 7
0
7

1
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

KEY PLAN

B
A

K
E

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

FLOOR PLAN -
SECTOR B-1

A101-B1

17045

11/22/17

01/08/18

02/09/18

03/19/18

04/01/22

100% DD

50% CD

PERMIT SET

ISSUED FOR BID

ISSUED FOR BID

1/8" = 1'-0"
A200 A101-B1

1 FLOOR PLAN - SECTOR B-1 - BASE BID

A-1

B-3

B-1A-2 C

D
B-2

E

F

G

H
N

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NO.

DATE ISSUED FOR

3
2

0
0
 G

R
O

O
M

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

A
K

E
R

, 
L
A

 7
0
7

1
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

KEY PLAN

B
A

K
E

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

FLOOR PLAN -
SECTOR B-1

A101-B1

17045

11/22/17

01/08/18

02/09/18

03/19/18

04/01/22

100% DD

50% CD

PERMIT SET

ISSUED FOR BID

ISSUED FOR BID

DATE REVISION ISSUED FORDATE REVISION ISSUED FOR

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



F
E

C

FEC

F
E

C

FEC

F
E

C

A201 4

A2012

A201

5

MATH
CLASSROOM

1224

LAB

1219

LAB

1216

CONCESSIONS

1239

RESTROOM

1238

DRY
STORAGE

1240

JANITOR

1241
WASHING

1242

OFFICE

1234COOLER

1235

LOCKERS

1237

WASHING
STATION

1227

CONDIMENT/NAPKIN
STATION

1228

GRAB-AND-GO
STATION

1229

SERVING
LINE

1230

P.O.S.

1231

KITCHEN

1232

MEN'S
RESTROOM

1226

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

1225

STUDENT
DINING

1243

LAB
STORAGE

1220

A201

3

A616

2

L2

L1

A625

4

1219

1216

1226
1225

1238

1241A

1241B

1234

1233C

1239B

1233B 1233A

1224

1220

1218

1217

1223

1222

1221

1239A

1240

1233D

MATH
CLASSROOM

1221

H
O

L
D

8
' 
- 

0
"

5
0

' 
- 

1
 1

/8
"

H
O

L
D

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
8

' 
- 

1
 1

/8
"

A501

1

A501

2

A501

4

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S3AA,

2

S
3
A

E
,

5

S
3
A

E
,

5

J

S3AG,

5

S3G, 2

S3G, 2

S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1S3EG,

1

S3EG,

1

S3EE,

1S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1
S3EE,

1

S6AE,

1

S3AA,1

S6AE,

1

S3AA,1 S6AE,

1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AG,

1

S3AA,1

S3G, 1 S2A,1

S3AE,

1

S3AA,1

S3AE,

5

S
3
A

E
,

5

S
3
A

E
,

5

S
3
A

E
,

5

S
3
A

E
,

5

S3AA,

2

JJ

FREEZER

1236

S
3
E

G
,

1

MATH
CLASSROOM

1222

MATH
CLASSROOM

1223

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM

1218

CORRIDOR

1201

UP

UP

/MATCHLINE 1 A101-B1

24' - 10"

HOLD

8' - 0" 24' - 10"

-1/4"

-1/4"

CORRIDOR

1233E

2
8

' 
- 

7
 5

/8
"

2
9

' 
- 

2
 3

/8
"

2
8

' 
- 

6
"

2
8

' 
- 

6
" MATH

CLASSROOM

1244

1244

HGFEDC.2C

9

10

11

H3

H1

HD HE HF

1
4

' 
- 

6
"

1
4

' 
- 

2
"

DASHED LINE OF
CANOPY ABOVE

DASHED LINE OF
CANOPY ABOVE

DASHED LINE OF
CANOPY ABOVE

DASHED LINE OF
CANOPY ABOVE

0"

-1/4"

-1/4"

0"

A431

5

A430

1

A431

1

A431

3

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

SLOPE
(1:20)

SLOPE
(1:20)

STEEL DUNNAGE FOR 
COOLING TOWERS,
RE: STRUCTURAL

A431

2

1
3

' 
- 

0
"

12' - 0 1/2"

12' - 0 1/2"

21' - 0" 5' - 0" 12' - 1"5' - 0" 21' - 0"

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
:2

0
)

A431

6

A801

36

A803

15

SLOPE
(1:12)

0"

A502

5

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

J

12

11' - 7 1/4" 7' - 6" 1' - 5" 8' - 9" 25' - 8" 10' - 3 1/4" 53' - 11 1/4" 25' - 9 5/8"

HOLD

8' - 0" 24' - 10"

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

6' - 6"

8
' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

6
0

' 
- 

0
"

6
"

1
0

' 
- 

2
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

U P

UP

U P

U P

U P

U P

U
P

U P

15' - 0" 9' - 6" 3' - 0" 12' - 0" 10' - 0" 12' - 0" 3' - 0" 59' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 8' - 6" 8' - 0" 13' - 6" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 6"

10' - 0" 10' - 0" 10' - 0" 10' - 0" 10' - 0" 10' - 0"

60' - 0" 13' - 0"

6' - 0" 2' - 6"6" 6' - 0"

44' - 7 7/8" 35' - 0 3/4" 40' - 7 7/8"

4
1

' 
- 

8
 1

/2
"

7
' 
- 

9
 1

/2
"

6' - 6"

12' - 0 3/4" 11 1/4"

8
' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

3
2

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

6
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
2

' 
- 

6
"

4
8

' 
- 

6
"

3
1

' 
- 

0
"

8' - 6" 10' - 0"

7
' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

9
"

1
' 
- 

0
 1

/2
"

69' - 6" 20' - 6" 11' - 0" 4' - 0" 15' - 0"

S
L
O

P
E

S
L
O

P
E

2' - 1" 8' - 2" 13' - 10 1/2" 22' - 1 1/2" 19' - 8 1/2" 2' - 5" 1' - 1 1/2"

SLOPE

S
L
O

P
E

S
L
O

P
E

5
"

CONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVILCONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVIL

SLOPED PLANTED BERM,
RE: CIVIL/ LANDSCAPE

BROOM FINISHED SLAB
ON GRADE, RE: CIVIL

TRANSLUCENT RESIN
WALL PANEL SYSTEM

CENTRAL
PLANT

1800

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

30' - 8"

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

S
L
O

P
E

(1
/8

:1
2
)

DASHED LINE OF
SOFFIT ABOVE

S6ED,

4,5

2
9

' 
- 

0
 1

/2
"

1
6

' -
 1

1
 1

/4
"

4
' 
- 

1
0

 1
/4

"
H

O
L
D

6
' 
- 

1
0

"

7
' 
- 

1
"

5
0

' 
- 

1
 1

/8
"

A625

3

CONCRETE PLATFORM,
RE: STRUCTURE

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM

1217

CONCRETE LOADING AREA

NEW FENCING, PROVIDE
GATE WHERE SHOWN; RE:

SPECS

BROOM FINISHED CONCRETE, RE:
STRUCTURAL

DASHED LINE OF
SOFFIT ABOVE

SECURITY FENCING W/
ROLLING GATE

GATE OPENING

20' - 3 3/4"

2
' 
- 

0
"

G
A

T
E

4
' 
- 

0
"

H2

H2

H2

H2

H1

H1

H1

H1

H2 H2 H1 H1

H2

H2

H2

H2

H2

H2

H2

H2

H1

H1

H1

H1

H1

-1' - 6"

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN - CONTRACTOR
TO REMOVE AND STORE
PLAQUE AT BASE OF
TREES DURING
CONSTURCTION

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN - CONTRACTOR
TO REMOVE AND STORE
PLAQUE AT BASE OF
TREES DURING
CONSTURCTION

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

SLOPE
(1/8:12)

A619

3

K

K

L3

E
Q

4
' 
- 

0
"

E
Q

A502

1

9
"

1
3

' 
- 

9
"

A4402

M2

M1

(ABOVE)

(ABOVE)

A611

2

1243A

U

S3AE,

5
S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5 S3AE,

5

S3AE,

5

S3EE,

1

V

S3AA,1 S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3AA,1

S3EE,

1

S3AG,

1
S3AA,1

S3EE,

1

S3EE,

1
S3EG,

1

S6AE,

1

1201B

1242

CORRIDOR

1233W

1201A

1201D

1800A1800B

1800C

2' - 4" 3' - 0" 12' - 0" 1' - 9"

H5

4
' 
- 

6
"

G
A

T
E

4
' 
- 

0
"

GATE

4' - 0"

PRE-MANUF. METAL 
BUILDING; RE: STRUCTURAL

SLOPE

FRAME SYSTEM BY 
RESIN PANEL 
MANUFACTURER

CONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVILCONC. FLATWORK, RE: CIVIL

A201

7

4
' 
- 

0
"

8" PREFINISHED METAL
DOWNSPOUT, TYP.

1424

1425

1243B1243C

FLOOR PLAN  LEGEND - BUILDING B

NEW BRICK WALL

NEW WALL PARTITION; 
RE: PARTITION TYPES

RIGID INSULATION

REFER TO G102 FOR PARTITION TYPES

REFER TO A-5.00 FOR STAIR AND RAMP PLANS AND
SECTIONS

REFER TO A-6.12 FOR ENLARGED BATHROOM PLANS
AND ELEVATIONS

REFER TO A-8.00 FOR OPENING SCHEDULE, A-8.01 FOR 
DOOR SCHEDULE, AND A-8.03 FOR FINISH SCHEDULE

REVIEW MEP AND RCP PLANS PRIOR TO FRAMING TO 
ALLOW FOR PROPER CENTERING OF LIGHT FIXTURES, 
VENTS, ETC. 

THE GC SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS OF THE EXISTING 
SPACE AND OF ANY EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO 
REMAIN BY ACTUAL MEASUREMENT BEFORE ANY 
WORK IS PERFORMED. NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
HIDDEN CONDITIONS THAT WILL NOT ALLOW 
EXECUTIONS OF DESIGN INTENT AS SHOWN IN CDS. 
GC TO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY AND 
ALL DISCREPANCIES FOUND AFTER THE WORK IS 
PERFORMED, AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE 
OWNER. 

THE GC SHOULD VERIFY ALL FINISHED DIMENSIONS 
BASED ON THE SUBCONTRACTOR'S SHOP DRAWINGS. 
FIELD CONDITIONS ALTERING ANY DIMENSIONS 
SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT TO THE 
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT. 

THE GC AND SUBS MUST IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND SHALL NOT 
PROCEED OR ALLOW SUB-CONTRACTORS TO 
PROCEED WITH WORK IN THOSE AREAS UNTIL SAID 
DISCREPANCIES ARE RESOLVED. 

WHEN CHANGES ARE REQUIRED, DUE TO ANY 
REASON, NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY AND 
PRIOR TO PERFORMING ANY OF THE WORK. CHANGES 
THAT ALTER THE CONTRACT AMOUNT MUST HAVE THE 
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER AND THE 
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF SUCH 
WORK.

ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
APPLICABLE CODES AND TO THE HIGHEST 
STANDARDS OF TRADE PRACTICE. 

CONTRACTORS SHALL REMEDY WITHOUT COST TO 
OWNER ANY DEFECTS DUE TO FAULTY WORKMANSHIP

ALL HANGERS, CHANNELS, RODS AND OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS SUPPORT STEEL SHALL BE 
FURNISHED AND INSTALLED AS NECESSARY FOR 
PROPER SUPPORT OF SUSPENDED/ SUPPORTED 
EQUIPMENT AND SHALL BE FASTENED TO STEEL, 
CONCRETE, OR MASONRY AS PER LOADING 
REQUIREMENTS. 

DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FINISH FACE OF WALL 
ASSEMBLY UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED; RE: 
PARTITION SCHEDULE

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A-1

B-3

B-1A-2 C

D
B-2

E

F

G

H
N

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NO.

DATE ISSUED FOR

3
2

0
0
 G

R
O

O
M

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

A
K

E
R

, 
L
A

 7
0
7

1
4

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

KEY PLAN

B
A

K
E

R
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

FLOOR PLAN -
SECTOR B-2

A101-B2

17045

10/30/17

11/22/17

01/08/18

02/09/18

03/19/18

04/01/22

50% DD

100% DD

50% CD

PERMIT SET

ISSUED FOR BID

ISSUED FOR BID

1/8" = 1'-0"A200 A101-B2

1 FLOOR PLAN - SECTOR B-2 - BASE BID

DATE REVISION ISSUED FOR

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



���������������������	
���
���������
������������	��������������

�������������

���	 ��!��"�	�
 #$%�&�$

����"
�'�
�������!�
���

����"
�����������(	�����������)���

����"
�*+
������'���,����

-./0

1��'�)�2*�34�,�54�2

6	��
�
7

�8

�	9
�
��

#���:8&88
;<=>?@ABC

D E

FGHFGHIJKLMNOKPQ RSTUVTWXYTZ[UV\MK]Ŷ_V\KRSU\VU\̂

\̀\âMGGbbb[cSTUVTdXYTZ[UV\G]Pef[̀\ghiPc\jSUklWlmn]Ŷ_V\oWTSXakFpFqInlV̂\STVorYgVkNstutNstutpqstutvqtWYXdVte\YjUhV̂ t̂e\VVhtRSTUVw HGI

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



������������	
�������

���

��
�����
���
�


������������

����
������������� ���������

�� �
�����!����
���
��	�� �"#���$

������
�

������
�
��
�� %

&'(()*+,-.+/0 123455657

8 ��
���
�����������������	
��	����������
�999

:

;<-=>?-;

�����������@
��

ABCABCDEFGHIJFKL MNOPQORSTOUVPQWHFXTYZQWFMNPWQPWY

[WW\YHBB]]]V̂NOPQO_STOUVPQWBXK̀ aV[WbcdK̂WeNPfgRghiXTYZQWjRONS\fAkAlDigQYWNOQjmTbQfInopoInopoklnopoqloRTS_QòWTePcQYYòWQQcoMNOPQr IBD

Docusign Envelope ID: 075B44CB-DE70-41B3-9F42-3D49EF67DB46



Administrative, Instructional and Support Staff Positions  
October 1, 2024  
  
I. Report of Resignations of Employment   
II. Report of Retirements  
III. Report of Appointments  
1. Kelvin Lyons- Teacher BMS  
2. Geoffery Griffin- Teacher BMS  
3. Clarence Williams- Custodian BMS  
IV. Report of Reassignments/Transfers   
V. Report of Sick Leave Request  
1. Melissa Parker            
VI. Report of Reduction in workforce             
VII. Termination  
1. Christopher Stevenson- Custodian                 

 


	10-01-2024  Board Agenda
	E 1 Board Minutes.9-3-2024
	E 2.a Resolution 1
	E 3.a Resolution 2
	E 4.a Financial Statements
	F.2ab A-05-02_24 (hl) (ABCB)
	F.2ac B-03-00_24 (hl) (BBBC)
	F.2b B-12-01_24 (hl) (BCBB)
	F.2c D-07-04.24 Purchasing (hl)
	F.2d DJEB-21 CDBG
	F.2e F-09-02_24 (GBA) (hl)
	F.2f F-11-04_24 (hl)  (GBRIB)
	F.2g F-11-04b_24 (HL) (GBRIBB)
	F.2h H-03-05b_24 (hl) (JDA)
	F.2i H-03-06_24 (hl) (JGC)
	Every student in grades kindergarten through third shall be screened, at least once, for the existence of impediments to a successful school experience.  No student shall be screened if his/her parent or guardian objects to such screening.  Such imped...
	1. dyslexia and related disorders;
	2. attention deficit disorder; and
	3. social and environmental factors that put a student "at risk."
	Students in need of services and/or assistance shall have it provided to them. The screenings shall be done directly by elementary school counselors, pupil appraisal personnel, teachers, or any other professional employees of the School Board who have...

	The School Board shall ensure that educational screening activities, conducted by a committee at the school level, shall be completed before a student is referred for an individual evaluation through pupil appraisal services.
	Students who are experiencing learning or adjustment difficulties in a regular program, but are not thought to be exceptional, may receive support services from pupil appraisal by a referral from a committee at the school level.

	F.2j H-03-06b_24 (hl) (JGCB)
	F.2k H-03-06c_24 (JGCD) (hl)
	Each student with diabetes who seeks care for his/her diabetes while at school or while participating in a school-related activity shall submit a diabetes management and treatment plan on an annual basis.  Such plan shall be developed by a physician l...
	A student’s diabetes management and treatment plan shall be kept on file in the school in which the student is enrolled and shall contain:
	The parent or legal guardian of a student with diabetes shall annually submit a copy of the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan to the principal or appropriately designated school personnel of the school where the student is enrolled.  Th...

	Upon receipt of the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan, the school nurse shall conduct a nursing assessment of the student’s condition and develop an Individualized Healthcare Plan (IHP).  The school nurse shall be given not less than fi...
	The parent or legal guardian shall be responsible for all care related to the student’s diabetes management and treatment plan until the IHP is developed, the parents or legal guardian have agreed to and signed the IHP, and the diabetes management and...

	F.2l H-03-06i_24b (JGCFA) (hl)
	Change Order 10
	Personnel List



